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Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi

Chairman

Chairman’s Message

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Directors’ Report of Inovest for the year ended 31
December 2011.

From both an international and regional perspective, 2011
was by all standards an eventful year on economic, political,
and social level. Though each of these variables, and their
conseqguences, has an indelible impact, it is perhaps the
economic changes that were the most encompassing and
prevalent. The European debt crisis left its mark, not only on
Europe, but also on associated economies, casting shadows
of doubt on the European Union itself and the value of its unified
currency. Across borders, the United States faced its own
debt and currency crisis creating a state of economic instability
that had a significant ripple effect across global economies.

Regionally, the year was marked by political issues in the Middle
East, directly or indirectly affecting a vast number of nations.
Such political turmoil had a pressing influence on a generally
bearish GCC economy, and on already wavering investor
sentiment, with repercussions of this clearly impacting the
operations of corporations and financial entities in the region.

2011 Performance Overview

Inlight of extraordinary financial and political upheavals, Inovest’s
performance throughout the financial year was characterized
by a firm sense of reality and pragmatism; impacting the
company’s approach and attitude towards Investment strategy
and manifesting in the Inovest’s business and its development.
This could be seen in terms of our ability to attract investors
at the required level for project implementation, and in our
guarded approach to new projects. Nonetheless, Inovest care
and diligence in maintaining ongoing investments has seen
fruition, with the completion and launch of Takhzeen (the first
self storage facility of its kind in the region), the development of
new buildings in the Tameer Commercial District on Al Estiglal
Avenue, the near completion of the business center within
the Bahrain Investment Wharf (BIW), and finalizing set-up of
the Bahrain Water Technology Company which aims to begin
production within the first quarter of 2012.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011

In spite of difficult business environments, Inovest has this
year successfully exited from a number of real estate assets.
In this regard, the company saw the sale of a number of
lands within Al Noor in Luzi, as well as sale of buildings in
the Tameer Commercial District. Inovest also took steps to
partially exit investors in Madaen Al Luzi, and in BIW Business
Park, providing positive relief and affirmation of commitment to
investors within the noted projects.

Financial Results

Inovest’s Group activities resulted in a net loss of USD 23.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2011, compared
to USD 34.9 million for the previous year. The losses are
mainly attributable to provisions and impairments booked in
investments, properties and receivables.

As of 31st December 2011, total shareholders’ equity stood
at USD 180.7 million compared to USD 205 million reported in
previous year. In addition, the total size of the balance sheet
went from USD 369.4 million in 2010 to USD 311.3 million in
2011 due to the repayments of outstanding payables and the
reported loss.

Focused on the Future

Inovest has, as a group, made several difficult decisions this
year with the goal of better positioning the company and
its subsidiaries for a more productive year ahead. Amongst
these initiatives, was a group restructuring in terms of human
resources, which had an impact on managing our reoccurring
costs, and in greater cross-utilization of our teamresources. The
company also took stringent measures to ensure appropriate
levels of liquidity including corresponding with banks towards
extending financing deadlines, liquidating and reallocating a
number of assets such as the sale of lands on Estiglal Avenue
and Al Luzi, and maximizing utilization of income and revenues
from the company’s principle subsidiaries.
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At a project level, Inovest will remain true to its strategy for
diversification in terms of business, income generation, and
geographic sectors; a tactic that encompasses both the
company and its subsidiaries. Accordingly, Tameer, Tamcon,
and Circo will assume a comprehensive approach to real
estate services from development, to project management,
and real estate advisory. Inovest in general will in turn focus
on investment structuring and development. Inovest’s current
investment prospectsinclude opportunities within Food Security,
Manufacturing, Healthcare, and Services. Geographically, the
company is considering opportunities within the Middle East
and Europe.

In conclusion, and on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would
like to express my appreciation to His Majesty King Hamad
bin Isa Al Khalifa, His Royal Highness Prince Khalifa bin
Salman Al Khalifa, the Prime Minister and His Royal Highness
Prince Salman bin Hamad Al Khalifa, the Crown Prince and
Commander in Chief of the Bahrain Defense Force for their
wise leadership and unwavering support to the business and
investment sector, and the Kingdom of Bahrain as a whole.
My thanks also go to the ministries and governing bodies
of Bahrain for their cooperation throughout the year; to our
shareholders, investors, board of directors, and business
partners for their ongoing faith in the future of the company;
and to our employees for their dedication and sincere efforts in
supporting our Group’s best interests at all times.
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As we lay down the foundations for a thriving year to come, we
ask God Almighty to guide our steps on the road to success.
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Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
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In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

The effects and influences of regional and international events
in 2011, from market volatility to capital instability, were neither
ideal nor conducive to entry into new investments. In light of
this situation, the Board of Directors of Inovest approached
the year with a pragmatic strategy focused on enhancement
and completion of the group’s existing projects, with the aim
of paving the way for the Company’s future progression. This
approach allowed for the alignment of the Group strategy with
market conditions, from a phase of business maintenance
and managements towards an expected era of growth and
development.

With this bearing in mind, the company’s executive management
has admirably transformed the Board of Directors’ advice into
tangible results. There were several steps taken to ensure a
healthier financial position for the group in order to set the
foundations for enhanced financial performance in 2012.
Despite the year’s difficult market conditions, the successes
garnered are indications for positive prospects in forthcoming
years. By the end of 2011, Inovest was able to see a return
to profitability having eliminated from its books the burden
of significant provisions due to its real estate exposure. The
Company successfully exited from several real estate assets
including sale of plots of land in the Al-Noor (Al-Louzi) District,
as well as sale of buildings, showroom space, and commercial
plots of land within the Tameer Commercial District project
located on Al-Istiglal Highway.

The executive management also embarked on a corporate
restructuring program during 2011, with the effect of significantly
reducing the company’s administrative and general expenses.
This was matched by progress on the project front, which
saw positive contributions being made in terms of enhancing
group revenues. In January 2012, under the patronage of
His Excellency the Minister of Industry and Commerce, the
company saw the official launch of Takhzeen, a first of its kind
self storage facility dedicated to the provision of storage space
for individuals and organizations. The year also saw progress
in the company’s Bahrain Water Technology Company (BWTC)
project, with the installation and testing stages for the first
production line of water filters completed. Additionally, the final
stages of work at the Business Centre in the Bahrain Investment
Wharf (BIW) are on the verge of completion. November of this
year also saw the launch of phase 1 of Durrat Marina’s sales.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Ahmed Al-Qattan

Managing Director

The launch which included an exclusive set of sea-facing villas,
luxury apartments, and residential blocks captured a great deal
of interest within a short period of time, seeing seven out of
twenty villas sold and another seven reserved.

One of the most substantial challenges faced by investment
companies across the board is the retention of a sustainable
and adequate level of liquidity. This matter was given special
attention by the executive management; actively seeking
diversification of income sources at the group level in order
to enhance the Company>s cash flows. Inovest successfully
improved its liquidity standing by end 2011 as compared with
the previous years of 2009 and 2010 by settling a significant
portion of its financing, therein reducing its financing dues and
enabling a better balance of total assets to total liabilities.

These initiatives and their results in aggregate, as well as the
Companyss continued and effective approach to expense
management lend themselves to indications of an optimistic,
profitable, and successful 2012.

On behalf of myself and the executive management, | extend
my sincere appreciation to the shareholders, business partners,
clients, and staff members who, guided by the directives of the
executive management, have worked diligently to support and
contribute to Inovest’s strategic objectives and overall success.

Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan
Managing Director
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Keeping up the Pace

In line with its decision to sustain its growth strategy last year,
2011 saw Inovest deliver on its promise of execution towards
shareholder value generation and greater innovation in its
investment choices. Inovest made substantial progress in
several of its projects in spite of market and investor conditions.
This is a testament of the company’s overall sustainability,
cost efficiency, and productivity improvements.  Inovest
has remained mindful of delivering at a total company level,
leveraging synergies with Tameer and its other subsidiaries in
order to deliver the best results in spite of difficult financial
conditions.
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Project Highlights - 20711

Tameer Commercial
District

Since conception, the Tameer Commercial District, located on
the industrious Al Istiglal Avenue, has been in spot light. The
company launched a marketing campaign for a commercial retail
concept offering showrooms. All 6 constructed showrooms
were sold in addition to 2 commercial building and several plots
of land. Two additional buildings are underway, one of which is
commercial and the other dedicated to residential requirements.
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Takhzeen

This year saw the completion and launch of Takhzeen, a state of
the art US$17 million self storage facility which is the first of its kind
in Bahrain and the region.

The project, which is built over a land area of 20,000 square
meters is located in Bahrain Investment Wharf (BIW) within Salman
Industrial City. The facility provides 18,000 square meters of
temperature controlled storage space distributed over 2 identical
pbuildings of which building 1 provides 800 storage units that vary in
size from 2.5 to 30 square meters catering to the differing storage
demands of individuals and businesses. Building 2 provides larger
storage units ranging from 100200- square meters for larger
storage requirements.

Takhzeen provides flexible storage (in terms of booking durations
and sizes of units), convenient access (24 hours a day, 7 days
a week), and security of client possessions. Insurance is also
available to our clients, should they choose to use it. Essentially,
the company provides clients with peace of mind, convenience,
and flexibility; all at affordable monthly rates
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Madaen Al Noor

Al Noor master plan was launched last year with great success.
This year saw an enhanced sales strategy undertaken which
allowed for a staggering of sales to meet market demands.
Overall, the project’s marketing campaign offers residential
options that cater to the local middle-income population. The
project has also been part of efforts to support social housing
developments in partnership with the government.
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BIW Labour Accommodation

BIW Labour Accommodation is fast becoming a model residential
community for industrial workers; setting a new benchmark for
labour accommodation and supporting amenities. This year
several onsite lifestyle enhancements have been made including
sporting facilities, security, and outdoor shaded areas. The project
has seen 50% of its constructed buildings sold and a high level of
rental occupancy in the other residential blocks. The remaining
blocks that are to be developed will be phased in accordance to
market demand.
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Bahrain Water
Technology Company

The Bahrain Water Technology Co. (BWTC) is a first of its
kind manufacturing facility for the production of water filter
cartridges designed for use in the household, industrial and
commercial sectors, as well as in desalination plants in the
MENA region and internationally. This year saw the delivery of
2 manufacturing lines as well as testing of production capability
in order to commission production. Line 3 of the facility is
expected within the second quarter of the forthcoming year.
Financing of US$10 million for the company and its deliverables
was successfully obtained this year towards an operating
target date in the third quarter of the coming year.
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BIW Business Park

The BIW Business Park saw completion of a second building
this year. The 5 storey building is designed in accordance to the
highest level of quality in terms of construction and finish and is
the first grade “A” office building in Salman Industrial City. The
property includes dedicated showroom space as well as offices
covering a total leasable area of 16,026m>.
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Project Highlights - 2011

Oil World

Qil World is a petroleum services and contracting company
based in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The project company
has two main arms; the first dedicated to oil field services and
the second a joint venture with an Indian company dedicated
to the production of flanges. Capital raising for Oil World has
been completed, and the project company is now working
towards its operational goals. Land acquisition for the facility
is being finalized within Damam’s Second Industrial City, KSA.
The entity dedicated to oil field services is already looking at
prospective deals. The second partnership entity expects to be
operational in terms of flange production by the third quarter of
the following year.
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Inovest is committed to its mandate of meeting global Shareholders Information
best practices and regulatory requirements in regards to

corporate governance; seeking to promote the levels of

. : Shares

t transparency, corporate fairness, and accountability within -~ EXEIYTE] Nationality 2: i (%)
O the organization. The company’s philosophy towards ares

Q corporate governance ties in well with these values and | Al Muthana Investment Co. | Kuwaiti 71,169,677 | 24.84%

those of the organization. Inovest has in this year continued

D to strengthen its corporate governance agenda, introducing | kuwait Finance House Kuwaiti 15,821,695 | 5.52%
E and instating policies and initiatives aimed at ensuring

CD awareness of the |mportance of appropriate policies, Dubai Islamic Bank UAE 19,748,883 | 6.89%
O procedures, and behavior across the board.

-

®© Governance Framework Director’s Ownership of Shares

E Inovest has established a framework that provides

O guidance for the effective governance of the Company. The Name No of Shares | %

> company’s governance structure reflects the segregation of Sarmir Y Al Nafisi .
O functions and responsibilities at the Board and Management amir Yaqoob atsl 474723 0.166%
@ level, with each clearly aware and capable of fulfiling their | Fareed Soud Al Fozan 78050 0.027%

relevant roles and responsibilities. This includes policies, Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan 78050 0.027%

(D procedures, guidelines and relevant management reporting Mohammed Ebrahim Al Nughaimish | 78050 0.027%
-+ designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Board in Abdurah Nousit Fakh .
@ monitoring the governance practices within the company. vlranrman Yousit Farnroo 78050 0.027%
O It also means the necessary and appropriate management | Jamal Abdul Rahman Al Rowaiyeh | 88275 0.031%
C)_ structure is in place and equipped to perform the day- Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri 94160 0.033%

(. to-day task of managing and running Inovest across all Mohammed Abdulla Fahad Al-Madi | 78271 0.027%
O business capacities. Inovest is committed to continuously
Q reviewing and enhancing its corporate governance policies

and to incorporating necessary improvements from time to
time.

Communication with
Shareholders and Investors

To encourage transparency and foster the culture of active
communication, the Board strives to maintain an open
communication channel with its investors and shareholder
at all times. In addition, the Board ensures to communicate
its strategy clearly to the stakeholders and maintain an
active dialogue with stakeholders.

Inovest is committed to publicly disclose to all stakeholders
transparent, comprehensive and timely information, in
which it publishes its financial statements on its website
and maintains it at all times.

The means of communication with investors and
shareholders is through the annual report of the company
and the AGM, press releases and advertisements, corporate
announcements through Bahrain Bourse and Kuwait Stock
Exchange, quarterly update reports to investors, arranging
Investors visits, and through the company’s websites

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Board of Directors
Information

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the strategic orientation of the
company as translated into its structural organization, the
approval of macro-policies and procedures, the integrity and
sound industry acumen behind the company’s business and
investment decisions, as well as monitoring the progress
of such business decisions and their related performance
levels. New Board members are informed of their roles and
responsibilities as Board members as well as their duties
within Committee memberships.

Board and Directors’ Responsibilities
The principal responsibilities of the Board are:

Strategic:
e Setting direction, i.e. vision, mission, values, ethics and
business practice.

e At least annually, review and approve the overall
business performance and strategy.

e Review and approve business plan and long-term
objectives.

e Determine values to be implemented throughout the
Company.

e Review and evaluate present and future opportunities,
threats and risks in the external environment and
current strengths, weaknesses and risks relating to the
Company.

e  Ensure that the corporate organisational structure and
capability are appropriate for implementing the chosen
strategies.

Operational:

e Overseeingthe conduct of the Company’s business and
operations in order to evaluate whether the Company
is being properly managed, including compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations.

e Ensuring financial statements are prepared which
accurately disclose the Company’s financial position.

e Reviewing and ensuring the adequacy and integrity
of the Company’s internal control and management
information systems, including systems for compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations.

e Ensuring appropriate financial planning, operating and
reporting framework as well as a risk management
framework is established. Elements under this
combined framework is the operating plan and
budget, financial statements, departmental strategic/

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011

performance review reports and risk management reports.
Reviewing, on a regular basis, who has authority to enter
the Company into contractual obligations.

Assessing the Company’s current and future aspirations
with respect to its position in the market place, its size,
products, value and other key aspirations considered
important by investors. A description of the Company’s
strategy should be included in the annual financial
statements.

Identifying proactively and understanding the significant
risks company faces in achieving its business objectives.

Risk Management:

Identifying principal risks and ensure the implementation of
appropriate framework, systems and controls to manage
these risks.

Corporate Governance:

Ensuring the Company adheres to the highest standards of
ethics and corporate behaviour.

Monitoring conflicts of interest and preventing abusive
related party transactions.

Monitoring the adequacy and implementation of the
Company’s Corporate Governance Framework.

Assessing and documenting (each year) whether the
internal corporate governance processes have successfully
achieved their objectives, and consequently whether the
Board has fulfilled its responsibilities for directing and
monitoring the overall conduct of the Company’s affairs.

The results of the review must be summarised in a written
certification, to be signed by all Board members, and sent
to the CBB within 3 months of the financial year-end of the
Company.

The Board must report any material deficiencies identified
during the review, along with an action plan and timescales
for their correction.

Periodically assessing the composition and size of the
Board and where appropriate reconstitute itself and its
committees by selecting new directors to replace long-
standing members or those members whose contributions
to the Board or its committees is not adequate.

Reviewing (e.g. every one or two years) the mix of executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors,
and skills and experience that it requires.

The Company must disclose to its shareholders in the
Annual Report any abstention from voting motivated by a
conflict of interest and must disclose to its shareholders any
authorisation of a conflict of interest contract or transaction
in accordance with the Company Law.



(&) &4 il Ao ga jpdi

wldiailg Wglul &a5)

VAles i g wlbidllallg gl @83g0 &3l wundgil ) o
eilllao &5l oim aagig .ualagollg dyayaisll &)lall allaoll
UHgaoll wldgiuo g &l wbaido g allaoll il
luylooll Jadl €l lgojily ga) &18gill

iyigild jusll ygoll g palaol e dulaidl duwlyuws
981igild a2l jgoll palioll (e dulusdl dumbiaw Lo s 8561 o)
Ueagoll Glon Lloygas dwbuudloin lovie yulghuio (sl oJ
loinoll palioll g duigild jusll jgoll e EIL (gogdy (il
o) dsyliul Gudail @i @bl iad @638 dwluul oin
By1all

alaoll yal=i

3 28 il wlunlloll lguiaiy i o)l pulao clacl gle
lelpa] wuudel] o) vl a5l allao g0 Alel allao
JIs ailg.allaoll by @leis gl Llasll so Joleil) adjgo
ln iy &anlgo duindlio) asylil il gl 8)lall yudao wleloial
ol &)lall pudao 48 o whlhdll 3355 @llaoll uylas Llasy
aslil aila)

vulaoll glad dygudcg 8)lall yudao
e Ugguio yoay wailio oyla] yudao Wbl cwldgi] ans
Jud o gl gylall pulao LAl edg Al clalg 8l
3819 58 26256l duogonll G20l Eloinl $8 Guonluwol!
cloial Al @l wlgiw WG ¢Ls 63300 610 g Ml
[P, 94 380l 6 ginl pogoll dy2on]l

&)lall Guuro il

ol il | olisallalile | yligall ageuw 20

G0 waidoll gasll dcgono ulndll aidl) 2ol

oalp] 1000
Uhouidl

@wgy poaplaic

5 a9

augplalile Uoaplae Jlon

augHl

GAA0IT juc gac | jliwllow | graugidl el jlin

[CESTINGNE gAC o Lo alllaic 10n0/2a

@.éLoJl

@il 3glg0]l

2205 9 Gyl g gl Jouing wgouhgll lleill nghss e
098 Lunlio Wi gla Lo o L=l 6)lall Jlaxsiwl g wilgyl
wlledl daa sloiclg dsalioy JAUI gle Lgiw 8)lsll yulao
wsid Way sl Galolly wlwlul dsleisll gayagll
Ol vy ol o) dyaliiellg @lall cllall 9 . 53030l
9 <l g wlall puuss wle goagll Lileill das Jouss
G301l yuddl yglaw ol gortaglhluollg Wl

-4yl elal ywlilg ousdil ducg Ago dolhil gag

&)lal ppmiballn Jouid (ol gl 8)lall yudao (usy e
ulao) paiiease ygasy ds il allall dndull Jusiig
@il 3048 yelg ol Joutis padaoll Jud (o Hgmagg )lall
G80llg a5l (ol 9 glodl pyaoll g g apeiidl yuuiyl
Luwlio yulaoll ol lotua algiuoll o @aptg gl

oo lmag8 98 Gty agan gyl gagy Lyl yulaoll pgéy e

aganll Jio sl Joduwo sl gl gaueidl gl wballa

U9 Uo UHgiwoll Loy yagooll wlloleol) sendll 4ya6ill
Bylall yudao (o dndio d64lgo (gdc Jgaall dalall

Sl clalasylio o

Ul wldgiuueg aapil) g)lall JAaall dealjog slosel o

aapil) asylidl old il gron dalablio o

ETAIN

@all ulanly Waonluoll allao jlicll (8 350l g pmoll o
Alaollg

oo allaolly @l ulanl g puonbuoll go wlilell doilio
Ao o1 6ig duwlioll wlogleoll foa JUa
Allasllg gall ulanlg roaluoll peag 8o dull jjes

ko buoll wleloial Jgan alaclg ade o

J2a ool loy puonluoll &o wlloleoll (99 slgluoll lon o
Ukomluoll

wlal) d&ixzo ploo (AgoT )lall yudao duilbol (o el gle
&g iioll Argds aisios U alall pulaoll o U1 a)lall ol ducall
&olivg Alsdg 8ls Joc bl 3939 Olody ddlsioll dalinoll

34810 iy &illho 9 LW Gl chale Al
Jool lnlnag lya gyl g el

wilaoll leeipw gl dyliollg &48loll ypleo yani e
L=l 8150l &o odaiio Jadin Jlasll e

11 Lol 8l Lo iy gl




O
)
D)

=

+—
C
Q

=

-
@,
Q.
D

s
)
O
C
©
C
—_
O
=
Q

O

=
QV)
—
O
O
—
Q

O

Human Resources:

e Succession planning, including appointing, training,
fixing the compensation of and, where appropriate,
replacing senior management. At least annually the
board shall review and concur in a succession plan
addressing the policies and principles for selecting a
successor to the CEO, both in emergencies and in
the normal course of business. The succession plan
should include an assessment of the experience,
performance, skills and planned career paths for
possible successors to the CEO.

e  Establishing objective performance evaluation and
measurement systems for the Company.

e The board shall appoint officers whose authority shall
include management and operation of current activities
of the company, reporting to and under the direction of
the board. The officers shall include at a minimum; a
CEO, a chief financial officer, a corporate secretary and
an internal auditor, and shall also include such other
officers as the board considers appropriate.

e The board should also specify any limits which it wishes
to set on the authority of the CEO or other officers,
such as monetary maximums for transactions which
they may authorize without separate board approval.

e Monitoring management performance.

e Approve and review at least annually the Company’s
management structure and responsibilities.

Monitoring:

e Oversight of the proper functioning of all the subsidiaries
of the Company

Accountability:

e Understand and take into account the interests of
shareholders and relevant stakeholders.

e  Monitor relations with shareholders and relevant
stakeholders by gathering and evaluation of appropriate
information.

e Promote the goodwill and support of shareholders and
relevant stakeholders.

e Convening and preparing the agenda for shareholder
meetings.

e Assuring equitable treatment of shareholders including
minority shareholders.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011

Delegation:

e Although the Board may delegate certain functions
to its sub - committees or management, it may not
delegate its ultimate responsibility to ensure that an
adequate, effective, comprehensive and transparent
corporate governance framework is in place.

e Delegate appropriate authority to the management,
monitor and evaluate the implementation of policies,
strategies and business plans.

e  Determine monitoring criteria to be used by the Board.
e Communicate regularly with senior management.

Code of Conduct

The Board has an approved Code of Conduct for the
Executive Management and employee. These codes
outline areas of conflict of interest, confidentiality, anti-
money laundering, bribery, and the responsibilities of
signatories to adhere to best practices.

Whistle Blowing Policy

The Company has a whistle blowing policy with designated
officials to whom the employee can approach. The policy
provides adequate protection and confidentiality to the
employees for any reports. The Board’s Audit Committee
overseas this policy.

Conflict of Interest

At all times, the Directors ensure to avoid circumstances
which may result in interests that conflict with those of the
Company. Inovest has a documented procedure for dealing
with situations involving “conflict of interest” of Directors.
In the event of Board or its Committees considering any
issues involving “conflict of interest” of Directors, the
decisions are taken by the full Board / Committees.

Name ‘ Representation ‘ Title ‘ Exe/Non Exe

Samir Yaqoob Al Nafisi | Al Nafisi Family Chairman Non-Executive

Fareed Soud Al Fozan | Al Fozan Family Vice Non-Executive

Chairman

Ahmed Rashed Al Group of Investors | Managing Executive

Qattan Director

Mohammed Ebrahim Al | Al Muthana Board Non-Executive

Nughaimish Company Member

AbdulRahman Yousif Board Independent

Fakhroo Member Non-Executive

Jamal Abdul Rahman Al Rowaiyeh Family | Board Non-Executive

Al Rowaiyeh Member

Bashar Naser Al- Gulf Investment Board Non-Executive

Tuwaijri House Member

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla | Shareholder Board Non-Executive

Fahad Al-Madi Member

Talal Khalid Al Nusuf Kuwait Finance Board Non-Executive
House Member
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Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
Non-executive Director

Mr. Al-Nafisi has extensive management experience in a
number of different sectors including trading, manufacturing
and financial services. He is currently General Manager of
Yaqoob Al-Nafisi & Sons Company, and former General
Manager of Al-Nafisi Trading Company, both based in
Kuwait.

Prior to this, he held managerial positions at Kuwait
Commercial Bank and Kuwait Insulating Materials
Manufacturing Company. Mr. Al-Nafisi has equally extensive
experience of serving on the Boards of numerous financial
institutions and companies in the GCC.

He is currently the Chairman of Al Khaleej Development
Company (Bahrain), Muthana Investment Company
(Kuwait), Vice Chairman of Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait),
and formerly a Board member of Gulf Investment House
(Kuwait), and Khalegji Commercial Bank (Bahrain), Gulf
Finance House (Bahrain), and International Turnkey
Systems (Kuwait).

Fareed Soud Al Fozan
Board Member and Vice Chairman
Non-executive Director

Farid Saud Al-Fozan is currently the Vice-chairman of
Gulf Group Holding Company a Kuwaiti based company
that owns a number of specialist companies strategically
located throughout the GCC

countries.

He is a board member on a number of investment, real
estate and financial companies, namely: Boubyan Bank
(Kuwait), Gulf Real Estate (Saudi Arabia), Amlak Real
Estate Co. (Kuwait) SAFCORP (Kuwait) and Al Khaleej
Development Company BSC (Bahrain).

He is also the Chairman of Young Arab Leaders Organization
Kuwait Chapter (an NGO). Mr. Al-Fozan graduated from
Kuwait University with a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration majoring in Banking and Finance.

Ahmed Al-Qattan
Managing Director
Executive Director

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board
of Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al- Qattan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accounting from the University of Bahrain.

Mr. Al Qattan has extensive experience in the banking,
manufacturing, oil and gas, trading and contracting sectors
across the GCC.
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Before joining Inovest, he was Chief Investment Officer at
Gulf Finance House and, prior to this, a Partner at Arthur
Andersen in the Kingdom of Bahrain. Mr. Al- Qattan is
Chairman of Bahrain Investment Wharf and Vice Chairman
of Tala Property Development Company.

Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh
Board Member
Non-executive Director

Mr. Al-Rowaih has over 25 years of experience in the real
estate sector, managing the extensive Al-Rowaih family
real estate portfolio. He also holds the position of General
Manager in Razan General

Trading and Contracting and Razan International Real Estate
specializing in various real estate trading, acquisitions,
leasing and management of properties.

Mr. Al-Rowaih also founded and contributed to a number
of project funds in various sectors such as real estate,
industrial and finance with a regional spread in Saudi Arabia,
Bahrain, Lebanon, Dubai and Oman.

Mr. Al-Rowaih graduated in 1980 with Bachelor Degree
in Business Administration Faculty of Commerce and
Economics and Political Science from Kuwait University.

Bashar Naser Al Tuwaijri
Board Member
Non-executive Director

A Bachelor Degree in Banking and Finance from Kuwait
University. Mr. Al Tuwaijri joined GIH in 2004 and is currently
the Senior Vice President of Direct Investment, Investment
Funds and Investment Placement.

Prior to that, Mr. Al Tuwaijri has held the position of Vice
Chairman of Amar Finance and Leasing Co., Kuwait, Vice
Chairman of Madain Property Co., Dubai, Board member of
Inovest Investment Co., Bahrain.

Mr. Al Tuwaijri is also the Vice Chairman of Majan
Development Co., Oman. From 1996 to 2003, he held
several positions at NBK before being appointed Corporate
Credit Manager.
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Mohammed Ebhrahim Al Nugaimish
Board Member
Non-executive Director

Holds a Master Degree in Business Administration (MBA)
from Maastricht School of Business. Mr. Alnughaimish,
who joined GIH in early 2002, is a Senior Manager, running
the International Fund Department (IFD) and handling the
Private Equity projects in DID.

Mr. Alnughaimish has held a number of positions such

as a Board of Director in the Excellence Education Co.
(Kuwait) and Arkan AlKuwait Real Estate Co. (Kuwait) and
is currently a Board of Director in Inovest Co. (Bahrain) and
Gulf Real Estate in Saudi Arabia, Stronghaven, Inc. (USA)
and Transocean Capital, Inc. (USA).

Talal Khalid Al Nisif
Board Member
Non-executive Director

A professional with more than 18 years experience in
various banking, finance and investment fields, Mr. Al-Nisif
heads the Private Banking Department at Kuwait Finance
House (Kuwait), considered as one of the leading Islamic
banks in the region.

Mr. Al-Nisif is a member on the executive committee for
enhancement of fund’s base and a chartered wealth
manager and a registered financial specialist from the
American Academy of Financial Management.

Mr. al-Nisif serves as a member of various companies
including KFH Asset Management SDN BHD (Malaysia),
Aviation Lease and Finance Co. (ALAFCO) (Kuwait), and
Al Salam International Hospital Co. (Kuwait). Mr. Al-Nisif
graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from
Kuwait University.

Abdulrahman Fakhro
Board Member
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Fakhro has a long standing and successful history
as a board member and executive within numerous
organizations. Mr. Fakhro is the current Chairman of Yusif
Bin Yusif Fakhro B. S. C . and of the Bahrain Commercial
Facilities Company. Additionally he is a Board Member in the
Bahrain Flour Mills Co. B.S.C. and in General Organization
for Social Insurance ( SIO ); in the latter he also holds the
position of Investment Committee Chairman.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011

Dr. Mohammed Al-Madhi
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Dr. Mohammed Al-Madhi is currently a board member of
the Public Pension Agency and also a board member in
Raidah Investment Company.

Dr. Al Madhi has a vast experience in the academic and
military fields. He held various positions in Saudi Arabian
Ministry of Defense & Aviation (MODA) from 1962 to 1990.
In 1991, Dr. Al-Madhi held the position of consultant to
the CEO in government relations at Advanced Electronic
Company in Saudi Arabia. In addition, Mr. Al-Madhi used
to be a part time instructor in various military and civilian
educational institutions.

Mr. Al-Madhi holds a Doctorate of Philosophy in Political
Science & Public Administration from lllinois University in
USA (1975). Before that, he gained his Master of Public
Administration in 1970 from the University of Kansas in
USA. His Bachelor degree was in Art, Political Science and
Economics from King Saud University in Saudi Arabia.

Board Terms and the Start Date of
Each Term

Directors may serve on the Board until the General
Assembly of the Company for the next year following his/
her appointment, and may not be re-elected after reaching
the retirement age, unless this requirement has been waived
by the Board for a valid reason. A Director shall serve for a
period of three years. The term starts at the end of March
for 3 years.

Induction and Training of Directors
The Company makes sure that all its members have the
knowledge, ability and experience to perform the functions
required of a director. Hence, an awareness program is
conducted to board members on Corporate Governance
and its new updated developments and practices in the
market.
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Board Committees and

Executive Committee

-

Membershi
P Sameer Al Nafisi \ \
Audit Committee Ahmed Al Qattan vV Vv
Fareed Al Fauzan Chairman Abdulrahman Fakhro v V
Mohammed Al Nughaimish Deputy Chairman Bashar Al Tuwaijri V V
Mohammed Al Madhi Member Talal Al Nusuf N N
Jamal Al Ruwaih Member
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
Executive Committee 0
O
Sameer Al Nafisi Chairman S A Nafel
ameer afisi
Ahmed Al Qattan Deputy Chairman
Abdulrahman Fakhro | Member Ahmed Al Cattan v
Bashar Al Tuwaijri Member Bashar Al Tuwaijr v
Talal Al Nusuf Member Talal Al Nusuf i
Audit Committee
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate 5 0
Governance Committee
Sameer Al Nafisi Chairman Fareed Al Fuzan — i v i
Fareed Deputy Chairman Mohamed Al Nugairmish v v
Dr. Mohamed Al Madhi N
Member
Ahmed Al Qattan
Jamal Al Ruwaih \ N N

Risk Management Committee

Moh’d Ebrahim Al Nugaimish | Chairman

Dr. Moh’d Abdulla Al Madhi Deputy Chairman
Jamal Al Ruwaih Member

Fareed Al Fauzan Member

Board Committee Meetings and

Attendances

Risk Management Committee

9/2 | 10/5 | 25/10 | 8/2/2012

Mohamed Al Nugaimish | v | v/ V v
Dr. Mohamed Al Madhi |y |+ v
Jamal Al Ruwaih v oY \J v
Fareed Al Fuzan v oY \ V

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011

Board Meetings

Absent Date

Adel Al Nafisi 1/5/2011 Previous Board
Faisal Al Khazam

Adel Al Nafisi 9/2/2011 Previous Board
Faisal Al Khazam

Talal Al Nusuf 10/5/2011 Current Board
- 21/9/2011 Current Board
Dr. Mohd Al Madhi 26/9/2011 Current Board
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Director’s trading of
company shares during
the year

None

The Management

Inovest’s executive management handles the day-to-day
operation and performance of the company and each of
its subsidiaries, advising the Board of developments and
progress.

Dr. Khalid Abdulla
Chief Executive Officer

Dr Khalid Abdulla joins Inovest from his previous post as the
inaugural Chief Executive Officer of Reef Real Estate Finance
Company BSC; creating in his time there one of Bahrain’s
more recognized brands in the real estate finance sector.
Before this, Dr Khalid was Assistant General Manager of
Business Development in BBK, a post which positioned
him at the forefront of project development and change
management, including projects on regional expansion.
Dr Khalid also held the post of Assistant Professor and
Chairman of the Department of Economics and Finance
at the University of Bahrain, bringing a background of
academia to practical use with his career progression.

Dr Khalid has a number of affiliations, including Vice
Chairman of the Economic & Financial Studies Committee,
as member of the National Committee on World Trading
Organization, and member of the Bahrain Economic
Society. Dr Khalid’s academic background includes an
M.Sc in Economic Development from the University of East
Anglia, UK and a PhD in Economics obtained from Exeter
University, UK.

Mohammed Abdulla Isa
Chief Financial Officer

Mohamed Isa joined Inovest in September 2004. Since
he joined this company, he played an instrumental role in
achieving several corporate milestones such as handling
the company’s Initial Public Offering, its cross-listing on
Kuwait Stock Exchange its Rights Issue, the re-launch of
its new corporate identity and its corporate restructuring
program.

Before joining Inovest, he worked for the multinational
giant — Unilever — in its offices in United Arab Emirates and
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. His last post with the company
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was Regional Finance Manager for North Africa, Middle East
and Turkey.

Mohamed is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from
Colorado State Board of Accountancy in USA. He also
holds a BSc in Accounting from University of Bahrain and
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from University
of Hull in UK.

Mohammed Al Abbasi
Head of Risk and Compliance

Mr. Mohammed Al-Abbasi, a Bahraini national, Director —
Head of Risk and compliance at Inovest BSC. Mr. Al-Abbasi
has over 11 years of experience in Banking, with a strong
focus on Product Knowledge, IT Knowledge, Compliance,
Risk Management and Business Development Processes.
He was a Director — Head of Risk & Compliance at
ProCapital Associates prior to joining Inovest on April 2010,
in which he established the Operations, Risk Management
and Compliance departments. Mr. Al-Abbasi began his
career with BBK in 1999 in IT Development then moved to
Business Development.

Mr. Al-Abbasi is an MBA holder and he is a Certified Risk
Analyst (CRA) from the American Academy of Financial
Management. He also holds a B.Sc. degree in Computer
Science from the University of Bahrain.

Hamad Zainalabdeen
Head of Internal Audit

Hamad Zainalabedeen joined Inovest BSC (“Inovest”) in
2009 as the Head of Internal Audit Department. Hamad
has extensive experience of working in financial institutions
and professional world-renowned audit firms over the last
11 years. Prior to joining Inovest, Hamad was the Senior
Principal of Investment Dar Bank’s Internal Audit Department
where he setup the Internal Audit framework and conducted
internal audit assignments aided by a risk-based internal
audit plan, with periodic tracking and statistical reporting
system for audit issues. Hamad has also worked as a
Principal with Gulf Finance House Internal Audit Department
where he was responsible for audits of various investments
in private equity, real estate and infrastructural development.
Before that, Hamad was working with Ernst & Young and
Arthur Andersen as an external auditor where he was
exposed to statutory audits of Islamic Investment banks,
manufacturing entities, government organizations and other
industries while also performing other assignments such as
internal audit reviews, valuations and feasibility studies.
Hamad holds an Executive MBA and Bachelors of Science
in Accounting from the University of Bahrain and has been
honored by the Kingdom of Bahrain’s Prime Minister for
excellence in studies.
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Mohammed Abdulkhaliq
Executive Director — Business Development

Prior to joining the group in 2004, Mr. Abdul Khalig held
a number of management positions with Bahrain Kuwait
Insurance Company in the Kingdom of Bahrain. He also
served as Chairman of the Market Committee for Property
and Casualty Insurance in Bahrain. His current Board
memberships include Chairman of Coldwell Banker Bahrain,
and Vice Chairman of Adhari Park Development Company,
Board member of Bahrain Investment Wharf Company.

Mr. Abdul Khalig is an Associate of the Chartered Insurance
Institute (ACIl), UK. He also holds a B.Sc. degree in Civil
Engineering from the University of Bahrain, and a member
of Bahrain Society of Engineers.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for establishing
the group’s risk management culture and ensuring that an
effective framework is in place. Risk is an inherent part of
Inovest’s businesses and acknowledging and managing
appropriate risk levels is critical to the Company’s continuing
success and profitability. As such, Inovest proactively
identifies, assesses, manages and monitors risks in its
decisions and operations with specific consideration to
credit risk, market risk, liquidity, and operational risk. Active
involvement of the Board and senior management in the
risk management process is vital to the development of an
effective control environment.

Internal Control

In pursuing its strategy and business plan, Inovest inevitable
relies on its internal control to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance as to the integrity and reliability of
financial statements. The company has invested in ensuring
the means of safeguarding, verifying and maintaining
accountability. The internal control also works to detect
fraud, potential liability, loss and material misstatement, all
the while complying with applicable laws and regulations.

Code of Conduct

Inovest has a board-approved Code of Conduct that
dictates the policies and procedures governing ethical
behavior, best practice obligations, honesty, transparency,
confidentiality issues, money laundering, and prohibition of
insider trading, amidst many numerous others. The Code
of Conduct is readily available to all new and existing staff
of Inovest, and its subsidiaries, in both English and Arabic.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011

Management Committees

The board delegates the authority and responsibility of
day to day management to the CEO, who in turn uses a
number of cross-functional teams to ensure financial and
non-financial performance:

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)

The Asset and Liability Committee manages the asset
and liability structure of Inovest, as well as the liquidity
and the funding strategy of the Company. This involves
monitoring and reviewing the financial risks and ensuring
that appropriate strategies exist for management of the
Company’s assets, liabilities and capital.

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee oversees the
management of the Company’s administrative, financial,
legal and information technology functions effectively.

Investment Management Committee

The Investment Management Committee oversees the
management’s investment of Company’s cash, short term
and long term investments in the operation of the business
of the Company.

Membership of the aforementioned committees is as
follows:

Member Asset-Liability | Executive Investment

Management | Management

(ALCO)

Ahmed Al Qattan | Chairman Chairman Chairman
Dr Khalid Abdulla | Member Member Member
Laith Al Memar Member

Mohammed Member Member

Abdulla Isa

Mohammed Member Member
Abulkhalig

Hamad Non-voting
Zainalabedeen Member

Mohammed Al- Member Member Member
Abbasi
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In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful,
Prayers and Peace Upon the Last Apostle and Messenger, Our Prophet Mohammed, His Relatives and Companions.

The Shari’a Supervisory Board “The Board” of INOVEST B.S.C. has reviewed the Company activities and compared them
with the issued Fatwas and Rulings during the financial year ending 31 December 2011 and found them compatible with
them.

The Board believes that he has expressed its opinion in respect of the activities carried out by INOVEST and it is the
responsibility of the management to ensure the implementation of such decisions.

A representative of the company’s management explained and clarified the contents of the Financial Statements for the
year ending 31 December 2011. The report of the Board has been prepared based on the information provided by the
company.

The Board is satisfied that the activities and services carried by INOVEST are in compliance with the Glorious Islamic
Sharia’a.

Praise be to Allah, Lord of the Worlds. Prayers be upon Prophet Mohammed Peace Be Upon Him, Relatives and
Companions.

p
O
o3
@)

A

0
—_
O

D
>

O

<

ey
L
S
C
o9,

Shaikh Mohammed A.Razaig Al Tabtabaee
Chairman

Shaikh Adnan Ali Al Mulla
Member

Shaikh Anwar Shuaib Abdul Salam
Member - . — [
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Inovest BSC

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Inovest BSC (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated
statement of income, the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the consolidated statement of sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Directors of the Group are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for
Islamic Financial Institutions and International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In addition, the Directors of the Group are also responsible for the Group’s
undertaking to operate in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a rules and principles.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with both Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions and International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of its consolidated financial performance, the changes in its consolidated cash
flows and sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions and Sharia’a rules and principles as
determined by the Sharia’a Supervisory Board of the Company.

In addition, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001, and the Central Bank of Bahrain
(CBB) Rule Book (Volume 4), we report that: the Group has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated
financial statements are in agreement therewith; the consolidated financial information contained in the Directors’ report is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements; in addition to what has been reported in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, we are not aware of any violations of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number
21 of 2001, the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law, the CBB Rule Book (Volume 4 and applicable
provisions of Volume 6) and CBB directives, Regulations and Associated Resolutions, Rules and Procedures of the Bahrain
Bourse, or the terms of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association having occurred during the year ended
31 December 2011 that might have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its consolidated
financial position; and satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the management of the
Company in response to all our requests.

BD o

vianarma, ningaom of Bahrain
8 February 2012

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 11,139 17,283
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 8 9,042 8,170
Trade and other receivables 9 67,377 77,588
Available-for-sale investments 10 28,845 35,242
Investment in a joint venture/associates 11 90,999 96,414
Investment properties 12 97,716 120,145
Properties-under-development 13 - 6,534
Property, plant and equipment 14 6,159 8,005
Total assets 311,277 369,381
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 80,533 92,347
liara and Murabaha financing 16 50,053 71,994
Total liabilities 130,586 164,341
EQUITY
Share capital 17 114,604 114,604
Less: treasury shares 17 (651) (651)
113,953 113,953
Share premium 30,760 30,760
Statutory reserve 18 21,473 21,473
Share option reserve 18 474 1,535
Retained earnings 14,031 37,319
Total equity 180,691 205,040
Total liabilities and equity 311,277 369,381

These consolidated financial statements, set out on pages 7 to 45, were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
8 February 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan
Chairman Managing Director

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2011 2010
Income
Loss from properties 19 (8,313 (20,792)
Income from investments 20 1,344 211
Income from advisory services 21 1,139 1,364
Net income from construction contracts 22 4,739 4,896
Income from sale of lease/project rights 23 - 744
Share of loss from investment in a joint
venture/associates 11 (1,556) (29)
Other income 370 565
Total income/(loss) 2,723 (13,035)
Expenses
Staff costs 24 (5,365) (7,930)
General and administrative expenses (4,259) (4,743)
liara and Murabaha financing costs (5,436) (5,787)
Lease payments - (1,294)
Property related expenses (115) (272)
Depreciation 14 (1,164) (1,451)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 14 (526) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale-investments 10 (2,024) (360)
Provision for impaired receivables 9 (8,740) ©)
Provision on corporate guarantee provided 27 (8,382) -
Total expenses (26,011) (21,843)
Net loss for the year (23,288) (34,878)
Basic and diluted loss per share 25 (8.17) cents (12.25) cents

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes Share Treasury Share  Statutory Share Retained Total
capital shares  premium reserve option earnings
reserve

At 31 December 2009 107,107 (1,488) 29,962 21,473 1,144 79,449 237,647
Net loss for the year - - - - - (34,878) (34,878)
Bonus shares issued 17 7,497 (43) = = = (7,454) -
tEr)wi;e)(/:;zrrs;(rj%rguneration paid for 17 ) ) ) ) ) (261) (261)
Shares issued to employees - 880 685 - - 463 1,678
Transferred to share premium
from share option reserve = = 463 = (463) = =
Stock option charge 24 - - - - 854 - 854
At 31 December 2010 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 1,535 37,319 205,040
Net loss for the year - - - - - (23,288) (23,288)
lglﬁ;r;\a/ersa\ of stock option o4 ) ) ) ) (1,061) . (1,081)
At 31 December 2011 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 474 14,031 180,691

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2011 2010
Operating activities
Net loss for the yedl (23,288) (34,878)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 14 1,610 1,948

_(Reversal of)/stock optoncharge 24 (1061 854
S : : : o= : 556 o3

liara and Murabaha financing costs 5,436 5,787
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 9 9)
Exchange loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss = 37
Realised gains on sale of investment properties 19 (241) (1,772)
Unrealised fair value losses on investment properties 19 4,876 25,030

_Realised losses on sale of available-for-sale investments 20 200 = 29
Realised losses on sale of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - 233
_Realised gains on sale of investment in a joint venture/associates 20 - (13)
_Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments 10 2,024 360
_Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 14 526 -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables 10,211 22,178

Trade and other payables (11,814) (28,053)
Cash used in operating activities (10,998) (11,363)
liara and Murabaha financing costs paid (5,436) (5,787)
Net cash used in operating activities (16,434) (17,150)

Investing activities

_ Purchase of available-for-sale investmentS - (4,708)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments 4173 1.000
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - 2,878
- [ o i P : > 000 B
Proceeds from sale of investment in a joint venture/associates 5,859 -
Dividends received from a joint venture/associates 11 S 3,979
Purchase of investment properties - (5,798)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 25,370 10,584
Net movement in Mudaraba and Murabaha investments (872) (8,170)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (299) (5.501)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 276
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 32,231 (5,460)

Financing activities

Net (repayment of)/proceeds from ljara and Murabaha financing (21,941) 1.521
Shares issued to employeeS - 1,678
Directors’ remuneration paid 17 = (261)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (21,941) 2938
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6,144) (19,672)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 17.283 36,955
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 7 11.139 17.283

Non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the non-cash transaction of transfer-of-properties-under-development to
investment properties and the swap transaction of purchases and disposals of available-for-sale investments (Note 10,
12 and 13) have been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows as being non-cash transactions.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Consolidated statement of sources and uses of charity fund

for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2011 2010

Sources of charity fund

Contribution by the Company = -
Total sources - -
Uses of charity fund

Contributions to charitable activities (265) (89)
Total uses (265) (89)
Excess of uses over sources (265) (89)
Undistributed charity fund at 1 January 1,051 1,140
Undistributed charity fund at 31 December 786 1,051

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

1 Organisation and activities

Inovest BSC (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries comprise “the Group”. The Company is a public shareholding company
registered with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain and operates under commercial registration
number 48848 obtained on 18 June 2002. The Company commenced commercial operations on 1 October 2002. In
accordance with the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association, the duration of the Company is for 50 years,
renewable for further similar periods unless terminated earlier by the operation of law or as provided in the Memorandum
and Articles of Association.

The Company is listed on the Bahrain Stock Exchange and cross-listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.

The Company has been issued an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) by the Central Bank
of Bahrain (CBB), to operate under the Islamic Sharia’a principles, and is supervised and regulated by the CBB.

The principal activities of the Company include:

- Engaging directly in all types of investments, including direct investment and securities, and various types of
investment funds.

- Establishing and managing various investment funds.

- Dealing in financial instruments in the local, regional and international markets.

- Providing information and studies related to different types of investments for others.

- Providing financial services and investment consultations to others.

- Establishing joint ventures with real estate, industrial and services companies inside or outside the Kingdom of
Bahrain and committing to operate under the Islamic Sharia’a principles.

- Having interest or participating in any way with companies and other entities engaged in similar activities that may
work and co-operate to achieve the Company’s objectives inside and outside the Kingdom of Bahrain, and also
merge its activities with the above mentioned entities and/or buy or join with them.

Although the Company has an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) issued by the CBB in
September 2008, it continued to hold real estate assets and related revenues and costs in its consolidated financial statements.
These assets existed prior to obtaining the license from the CBB. The Company has transferred its entire real estate assets and
the related revenues and costs to its fully owned subsidiary, Al Khaleej Development Co. B.S.C. (c), which primarily carries out
real estate and construction related activities. Since this subsidiary is fully owned by the Company, the real estate assets and
revenues and costs continue to appear in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011. Notes 12, 13, 16, 19 and 22 in these consolidated financial statements reflect the Group’s transactions arising from
holding of real estate assets and their corresponding liabilities and revenues and costs arising therefrom.

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 December 2011 was 491 (31 December 2010: 531).
The registered office of the Company is in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
passed on 8 February 2011.
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”)
issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“the AAQIFI”), the Bahrain Commercial
Companies Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001 and the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law 2006. For matters
which are not covered by the AAOIFI standards, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have been applied.

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment in a joint
venture/associates which are equity accounted and available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and investment properties which are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with FAS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Functional currency

United States Dollars is the Group’s functional currency and also the currency in which the Company’s share capital is
denominated. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in United States Dollars.

3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries,
after elimination of all inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between
the group companies. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the costs cannot be
recovered. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Entities controlled by the Group by virtue of holding more than fifty percent of the voting shares are considered as subsidiaries.
Entities over which the Group has significant influence and which are not subsidiaries are considered either as associates or
joint ventures. Associates include entities in which the Group holds twenty percent or more of the voting share capital. A
joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
control. The Group’s share of income in a joint venture associates is accounted for using the equity method.

The Group does not consolidate its holdings in those entities from which it does not obtain any benefit from its activities and
the investment is held only on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of third parties.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011



Q.o.ul Wandgil

Fal jroms Pl g dumiioll &iunll 5a3goll &lloll @bl Jga wlalayll
(x40l wlylgall WG d&ino &loll)

&9 - Ellol lilal axagi yubul (P

LIS Tl o Plad Lok syl el il g dy il wlylodiwl Jaales gy Losdg

9
F1 juouwga Pl

Wlagagoll Egono
F‘I .". :
[ EVITTER

Ia bl
@.uJLuJU|

d4glooll &l
ol aoy o]l @9
8yaLnll oo will

a4 il ol
a_<)lll

JloJl yuly o

il5o)

(P Aro) FVE,. PR whlesl jyglnig 6lal 99,9/ _
Ul

dnla Lalpel wls @4
Bloiall aps) cuuwl
8)alnl dcgonoll pmuwly a9
aolijy o cjas yrdlhgoll
lm4aloi UJ.J_] 6J|_\1J|)'Q|9.3
Utabrgoll Jud o

8)lal o= sy
anlall uldliooll

Ul _
[O.rO._\

B9 s uls il i @8da o)l adloll wlibdl o dsylidl wls il wldoc el wllag wlagagoll slonl alpaiwl i 18]
L juowga P @Q o]l dudlg

o0.3 Jlocll j550 glas) gl Guugo &45189 0.0.5 pghil) wjglll A a5 99 losonlue @4l clgs 1 plia |69
dsylil as il gl fo.r0.3 )Le=ll jugla U UG &4 juhig o.p0.3 Jlosall i Gyyasdl Gunpo @5 1uiig o.r0.5 dylisll willlagl) jyowd &4 g
dsylill @4 il ol &4 il ¢y Lo dyiguao @la ) 6ol Jugnill lam o)) (o) (@laso) .U juoeild aulall a4 i Jolall
&8l ol ala) 889 a5l e &LL &gaoll pawll Gap Ygorro loato E9810ll élioll 1an ylg (loato dcgdao") piows
L alig 1 &l o jro=i ol lodygai o3 48 pall il il 98 bl @4 il domluio Jygai dylo=) déleioll falasllg dyalaidll
j4poll gle 156y U Jugnill lim ol ro.0.3 dyléll willagll 1y owi @4 lac Lo dnisoll lmall go ligild Jygaill (yo clmiill oj 18

@A pil) aylodl ol &0 prowi d4yuid dloll wlilidl ayngi od aill ¢llig  JA4 dcgonol) angoll silol!

U9aliog Al Guemluiedl Ol elag dsylidl el il (o /1. @i degonoll ol ywlwl gle 6 31g0)l dullodl bl wiacl 18]

Il gdlodl juy8il wipo. b i 9g.i]



26

Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The details of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Proportion of Total Net loss for the
Name of the Country of P . Principal assets at year ended
L . . ownership .
subsidiary incorporation interest activities 31 December 31 December
2011 2011
Al Khalegj Kingdom of Management and 273,033 (13,825)
Development Bahrain 99.98 development of
Co. BSC (c) properties
A company
established to hold
) ) the Group’s shares
Tameer for Private Klngdom of 99 on behalf of its 600 )
Management WLL Bahrain .
employees in respect
of the employees’
stock option plan

The total assets and net loss for the year of the subsidiaries have been extracted from audited financial statements prepared
as at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2011.

On 1 January 2010, the Company transferred its shareholdings in Al-Luzi Housing Development Company W.L.L., BIW Business
Park Development Co. W.L.L., Tameer Real Estate Agencies W.L.L., BIW Labour Accommodation Company W.L.L. and Tala
Property Development W.L.L. to its wholly-owned subsidiary — Al-Khalegj Development Company BSC (c) (“Tameer”). This
transaction created an inter-company advance (‘the Advance”) between the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Tameer, which is secured by mortgaging the shares transferred in favour of the Company. Accordingly, the economic benefits
and risks associated with the transferred shareholdings accrue to Tameer with effect from 1 January 2010. All legal formalities
have been completed to affect these transfers with the concerned authorities, except for Tameer Real Estate Agencies W.L.L.
The transfer of shareholdings does not affect the consolidated financial position of the Group as a whole, as Tameer’s financial
statements are consolidated with Company’s financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated as though the Company owns 100% of
these subsidiaries, as the other shareholders, hold their shares on behalf, and for the beneficial interest, of the Company.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011



Q.o.ul Wadgil
0 joouga Pl gd damitioll diud) 6aag0ll dloll wlildl Jga alalayll
(as45001 wiylgall WL diguo &lolD)

dawlaoll Glwbawdl e (€

ol el (i

edaiio gulwl gle lodad ad alwbul oio ] 8aag0)l &lodl wlibul slac] g8 dyioll dmbholl wlnluwl pal laslo gy Loy
A3 @l j4 5 el od Lo bl lim (58 dagrsoll wlgiuull JA Jiloiog

a8l auubg dyaail

iy)laollg dylioll &lagg Wil a9 G9ainlly dyad il 6amyll (o dyadill auiisg dyadill oA dyadill wladail) angoll (lull Ay
J41 gl logy A 6,58 Jls Jpuanill g gillg (bl jn8

laa g dyjlaollg dngliol wljleisuwl

allolso (po axilll Jlually wuulaoll o) (&l p=un) dnl Gisola ayl] Wlao @614 il youn dyjlaollg dnulioll wllodiwl jlals] iy
wld ygad bo sale dgaoll dylaolly dalioll whlodiuwl a8l wli sgosll 60 JUa angoll Yol glo (99 wuwiad dylaollg dxljoll
logy M1 gJl Al Lo (§loniuwl 8,19

digaollaylaill ool

0985 sl d=alioll gle leliy @igaoll ool 8048 G99 paleaill jadi Joc oibg L8167 &g ioll Loy diyaoll Q.Ula.x_ll oMl jmlAj
wle Wpeil) saa e @l Ja bl gde @uaoll aylaill po il palaail juisl ed diuwl &lad W9 &8iuoll 82oyll &ron) 81501 Loy
idl JUa dogasoll (gual elli Jdo Junni dgiliol o ae loy 8 (undiy il dawdl JUA (gl olacl odbg (a9 o)) leduanioac dudloinl

" 38 L yani edy gl

&l 859950 wljloibiwl

oin .8)luall gl audl 83300l dalell dordll dylo Wiagngod lmbyins iy Vg ddidiio jue whloiiwl g &) 819950l wljloiswmll o)
6599 LoJl vilj Lol Gluwial oy o 8léniiw] dyli guin loy Klaiall iy U g dayao jueé gl dnjao ulﬁ}.u.l@g Wl lodtiw] Jeouind vl Lol
oc alylotiwll oin) dlalell dorsll g8 1125 slg alalell dordll gl 658giell iljlotimll Ulusial kel iy [8alg Lo dalailly guul)

ronluoll §g8a (4o cjns dalell doydll glalial 58 ayluisl pdy Liayo Loy logluial od il doydll

wlagagollelli el gl gay degonollasd pjili s Al dylill gmg wlloleoll & clyal auyliy il loiiwll clyillg gull wllolo &1on wiinig
il @a iy loaic whloiiuwdl Glutial iy U wlloiiwll ¢l el wlloleo oloil dojlul wlesil gion WlAT il (orniyg
0in dalo) &nlall Mlgellg alioll &ron Jigaiy 18al dcgonoll violdg wljlotiwll oim Jygai o bo 3] gl lovic palil g8 Gaail
il doydl Lol (glgwdl s 98 dnyaoll jlewdl gl gle din gl Glowdl o4 dayroll wllobiwll &l doydll Luwiai lodiull
Jlowi lod 1agi b Gl Lo jodiuoll wls il 58 wlagagoll (gdlal dcgonol) duuill pananall 9 Jioid Gmd QAJA_().”}J_C o wil

lasela i wuudngd oy Ggigo &bupn loiord yubid (aor U gullg dlau il k9|9_LUJ|\j\QQAJ_\.D

LRy |é___J)LLh.oJ|\"5\QQ|JLoJ_uu"'" Ul

wngos lmwawli o gillg iyalas@ll leida il g @4 o 8dayuw dcgonoll g i gl &yl i g @4 piiell &yyliell o))
Gpmga il Loyl aily 28195 degonoll )lal ol tua loiblus g8 Galoll Ggbn dd i paaiuig Jial ol gl (o dyables ldlal
§98 ddypln ] a8 iudioll &yliol) dly2iiillg o)l @lwlbuull 58 Al gl bjublio yuc gl 6piblio )9y @5 5uiio Splagu g
aan 94 Wl Ggan e lndyaei pd dala il dord) Uiaro aspiinell spapull wls &ylinell @8 6a50)] Jaawd Goals aaloll
J28 o &yliiioll e @y iuiioll s pbn ] ay Al o lnbiulns ody s loll §gbn &8upn a4 iudioll &yldroll liloc @ilid (10 dcgonoll

Bl i cladll ayli (giing dcgonoll

Il gdlodl juy8il wipo. b i 9g.i]



27

Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies
i) Accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements is set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short-term Murabaha and Murabaha deposits which have a maturity period of 90 days or less.

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments and profit

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments are accounted for at cost plus margin ‘sales price’. The gains and losses which result
from Mudaraba and Murabaha transactions, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the
related contracts. Mudaraba and Murabaha investments usually have maturity periods ranging between 91 days and 360
days.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at their anticipated realisable values. An estimate is made for impaired trade receivables based
on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. The requirement of provision for impairment is analysed on a case-
by-case basis to identify the likely-hood of non-recoverability (if any). Bad-debts are written-off during the year in which they
are identified.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
These include investments in certain quoted or unquoted securities that the Group will not hold till maturity. Available-for-sale
investments are initially recorded at cost and subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Any changes in fair values of such
investments subsequent to initial recognition are included in the fair value reserve as a part of shareholders’ equity.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Cost of purchase includes transaction costs. Investments are derecognised when the right to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Fair value of investments listed on active markets is determined by reference to the quoted market
prices. The fair value of unquoted securities, where available, is the Group’s proportionate share of the net assets of the
investee company. In the absence of active markets or other appropriate methods from which to derive reliable fair values, the
unquoted securities are stated at cost.

Investment in joint venture

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities, being entities in which two or more parties contractually agree to share control
over an economic activity, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as the Group’s management believes
that it exercises joint control, that is the power, directly or indirectly, to jointly govern the financial and operating policies of the
jointly controlled entities. Equity accounting involves recording the interest in the jointly controlled entity, initially at cost, and
adjusting it for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the results of operations of the jointly controlled entity. The
equity method is applied from the date on which the Group assumes joint control over an entity, and ceases when joint control
is relinquished.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011



Q.o.ul Wadgil
0 joouga Pl gd damitioll diud) 6aag0ll dloll wlildl Jga alalayll
(as45001 wiylgall WL diguo &lolD)

&L - dawlao)l Glwbwdl ol (€

ol wilayill 519 jlosiwl

dcgonoll lmyd uyloi gl wilsy il ells g ol el il ausloll 58 Gall dyping a ol eila il 58 éegonoll jlotiuml Lluial oy
sylinoll gl a=ylidl wila il (o i U ol cilsydll Gl Lok 7 0. Ul £+ (ylo role J4 i degonoll loyd ellio gillg Lugolo 13gaj
Lysewe]l

slgaiuwll alom) @leii vl &) oyl Blao angoll gloll Aol Yl (o cllig dalail ayojll vl il g8 jlotiwl Lluisl oy
ol gl o9 ayluial ody dgodl vl pidl wliloc (o &4 il &ns g8 @ilil p3lil Gl A lodiord @8 (aleail &l loio puunyg loyle
dic anaig opblio puill s Llwial 0985 dcgonoll 018 dliojll wilsyill s ) G410l G9ba $9 s il Wlim ygAy loaic .aagoll
ool goda 98 w2l sagoll gLl 9.8 clls ol wilias Lol

aylic chloiiul

wluial oy 20 lonll4 gf loiosd dpeiil gl dypuali wlalyl logle ja5 g4 dyleell llotiwl Loy Jioil 53300 whlic dcgonoll Cllios
Whlobimll Gaisg [8alg laslub wlloleo jlail dojllg dunlaoll e il clis g8 Loy &alAil y2uy yobl 5aly g dylasl llodiwbl
angoll Janl ply @8 logluial ady dylesl alleiiwll dslell dosell g8 u2ill e doalill Sluallg alyll ¢l dlslell doysll dylesll

Sl s Jio loy8 &ranyg gl diadl g8

G «@llodimll (o lalglh o angoll Jaall gl v8 dylesl aljloiiwll dalell doydll 98 il (e doalidl Bluall ludal oy
1699 (yronlunoll §gin 98 wln2il) angoll Ll 998 lotinl] dalell dosell galyial 58 logluisl iyd alyll ol o8 Liuis gl &l
2o18)l slaliinl 98 doaliioll alybl 8 s leslljlodiuwll slesiwl Yo g8 apollull dylo)l bluwgoel) d2aliellg ol &y allhiol

Blaoll alyll gJl ledyga oy @alsl

dulibiuno &alaill deio & Ulin a2 og doils 6907 2033l 4o loaaw i Lo 13 gl o2y i Lo 1] dylesll whlediwll Guuias Ug
Al & 58 dylisll allotiuwll sleuiwl e doaldl Sluall ol eyl angoll Jaadl ly W9 Luuinig ey o loyin &dgio

Jul ade (59 eyl gl jlesl) Wloll plaaiuwl cloill (o Juday oladiuwll iy baic khadg Jla w9 yle=ll whlodsiwll el Jugail iy
00905 59 <l ol jlasl) cllodl ol aaiwl ey Juday olaziwll iy baic lhodg Jha @9yl aljloiuwll (o Jugail odug (glaseiis
Sl s

gl ans allac
o lmpghi gi Lo e L] oy L5\.1_” alhlosll gi dayabiell ayylall dl.o.cm QoA (od &audd 839970l wiljlésll @Q okl aad ahlésl el

U0 le sl ey gl Wylaoll &on Yoty illg &l y2un pohill was ahlésll puudi pdyg Jabiuwoll 99 oy 6l Jal
ahlosl) ayabicll cliullg pglaill Wgyla

clyg o aududiuo &lio iyl 1929 &gy Vg Uilos lmolaaiiwl pac o sl oy loaic gi lo2y (un gkl aad ahlée slewiwl iy
ol gl &l (99 angoll o)l gly g9 pghaill and wlhlée slesiwl ddoc (o doalll JSluall ol Luwl4oll Lluwial ody . lmalewiwl
Al doc loug

Il gdlodl juy8il wipo. b i 9g.i]



28

Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment in associates

The Group’s investment in associates is accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Associates are entities in which
the Group has an interest of between 20% and 50% and has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
venture.

The investment in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes, less any impairment in value. The consolidated statement of income reflects the share of the results of operations of
the associates. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the associate’s equity, the Group recognises its share of
any changes and discloses this, where applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Investment properties

The Group holds certain properties as investment properties to earn rental income, for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group engages independent valuation specialists to determine fair values as at year-end.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the consolidated statement of
income in ‘income from investment activities’ in the year in which they arise and in case of gains these are appropriated to
the investment revaluation reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in accordance with the requirements of
AAOQIFI. When the investment property is disposed of the cumulative gain, previously transferred to the investment revaluation
reserve, is transferred to retained earnings.

Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the end of owner
occupation or commencement of an operating lease. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of development with a view
to sale.

Properties-under-development

Properties-under-development represent properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business or in the process of
construction and development for its future sale. Properties-under-development are valued at cost and include expenditure
incurred in the normal course of developing and constructing the property.

Properties-under-development are derecognised when they have either been disposed-off, or when the property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition of a property
under development are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of derecognition.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of plant and equipment to their estimated residual
values over their expected useful lives as follows:

Building on leasehold land 25 years
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware and software 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are
taken into account in determining net profit.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the consolidated statement of income when the expenditure is incurred.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amounts, the property, plant and equipment are written-down to their recoverable amounts.

Capital work-in-progress

Expenditure incurred on the construction of new facilities prior to the commencement of their commercial use is capitalised.
Capital work-in-progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated at the time of commencement of
their commercial use.

Islamic financing

Islamic financing towards ljara and Murabaha financing are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs incurred. In subsequent periods, these are stated at amortised cost, and any differences between proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the repayment amounts are recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the
financing.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions when it has a present legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefits as a result
of past events, and a reasonable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each consolidated statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence that an
asset is impaired. Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in
the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security,
a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
a) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

In the case of investments in equity securities classified as available-for-sale and measured at fair value, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale investments, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the consolidated statement
of income is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of income on equity instruments are not subsequently reversed through the consolidated
statement of income. For available-for-sale investments carried at cost, the Group makes an assessment of whether there
is an objective evidence of impairment for each investment by assessment of financial and other operating and economic
indicators. Impairment is recognised if the estimated recoverable amount is assessed to be below the cost of the investment.

b) Impairment of other non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets or its cash generating unit, other than financial assets, are reviewed at each
consolidated statement of financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. A cash generating
unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and
groups. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use or fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses are reversed only if there is an indication that the
impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Dividends and board remuneration
Dividends to shareholders and Board of Directors’ remuneration are recognised in the period in which they are declared.
Treasury shares

Shares of the Company reacquired at the consolidated statement of financial position date are designated as treasury shares
until these are reissued or cancelled. The nominal value of the treasury shares is shown as a deduction from share capital with
the difference between the nominal value of the shares and the purchase cost being adjusted against the capital reserve. The
gains or losses on sale of treasury shares are recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Share based payments

The Group operates a share-based incentive scheme for its employees (“the scheme”) whereby employees are granted the
Group’s shares as compensation on achievement of certain non-market based performance conditions and additional service
conditions (the ‘vesting conditions’)

Equity instruments under the share based transactions are measured as the difference between the fair value of the share-
based payment and the fair value of the identifiable services received at the grant date. The cost of equity-settled transactions
is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in shareholders’ equity, over the period in which the performance and/
or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘the
vesting date’).

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
a) Income from sale of lease/project rights

Income from sale of lease/project rights is usually recognised when the Group obtains from investors legally binding and
irrevocable commitments to subscribe to investments promoted by the Group. The Group then recognises revenue based
on the pro-rata amounts of such signed subscription agreements as at the consolidated statement of financial position
date, and the terms specified in the related Private Placement Memorandum.

b) Advisory services income and project management fees

Income from advisory services and project management fees are recognised based on the stage of completion of the
service at the consolidated statement of financial position date by reference to the contractual terms between the parties.

c) Rental income

Property rental and service charge income, arising from the letting-out of investment properties to tenants, is recorded
based on the agreement entered into with the tenants and is recognised on the accruals basis.

d) Contract income and costs
Contract income is recognised under the percentage of completion method.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of physical completion of the contract. Contract income and costs are recognised as income and expenses in the
consolidated statement of income in the accounting year in which the work is performed. The contract income is matched
with the contract costs incurred in reaching the stage of completion, resulting in the reporting of income, expenses
and profit which can be attributed to the proportion of work completed. Profits expected to be realised on construction
contracts are based on estimates of total income and cost at completion.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the contract income is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred up to the year-end where it is probable those costs will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised when incurred. The excess of progress billings over contract costs is classified under trade and other payables
as due to customers for construction contracts.

Losses on contracts are assessed on an individual contract basis and if estimates of cost to complete the construction
contracts indicate losses, provision is made for the full losses anticipated in the period in which they are first identified.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/loss recognised on each contract is compared against the progress
billings up to the year-end. Where the sum of the costs incurred and recognised profit or loss exceeds the progress
billings, the balance is shown under trade and other receivables as due from customers for construction contracts. Where
the progress billings exceed the sum of costs incurred and recognised profit or loss, the balance is shown under trade and
other payables as due to customers for construction contracts.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
e) Property management fees

Property management fees are recorded based on agreements entered into with the owners of the property and is
recognised on the accruals basis.

f) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
g) Other income

Other income is accounted for on the accruals basis, unless collectibility is in doubt.
Earnings prohibited by Sharia’a

The Group is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non-Islamic sources. Accordingly, all non-Islamic
income is credited to a charity account where the Group uses these funds for charitable purposes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised
in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if

the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Post employment benefits

Employee benefits and entitlements to annual leave, holiday, air passage and other short-term benefits are recognised as they
accrue to the employees. The Group contributes to the pension scheme for Bahraini nationals administered by the Social
Insurance Organisation in the Kingdom of Bahrain. This is a defined contribution pension plan and the Group’s contributions
are charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year to which they relate. In respect of this plan, the Group has a
legal obligation to pay the contributions as they fall due and no obligation exists to pay the future benefits.

The expatriate employees of the Group are paid leaving indemnity in accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Labour Law.
The Group accrues for its liability in this respect on an annual basis.

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Gains and

losses arising from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation, at the year-end rates, of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers. The chief operating decision makers have been identified as the Managing Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group.

a) Standards applicable

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2011 and applicable

The following new standards, amendments to existing standards or interpretations to published standards are mandatory for

the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and have been adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Standard or Effective for annual
periods beginning

interpretation Title on or after

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2011

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2011

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures 1 January 2011

IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ effective 1 January 2011: The amendment clarifies that the analysis of items
of Other Comprehensive Income may be shown in either the (primary) statement of changes in equity, or in the notes to the
financial statements.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a) Standards applicable (continued)
Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2011 and applicable (continued)

IAS 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ effective 1 January 2011: The amendments emphasise that disclosure about sig-
nificant transactions and events is required to update relevant information presented in the most recent annual financial
report. The standard has been made more specific about events and transactions for which disclosure is required, and
guidance has been added covering the application of the requirements for financial instruments.

IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ effective 1 January 2011: The amendment clarifies quantitative disclosure
requirements for risks arising from financial instruments, and encourages accompanying narrative disclosures if the
concentration of risk is not apparent from the quantitative disclosures. The requirements for disclosures of credit risk,
including collateral held, are clarified and reduced, with the carrying amount of assets that would have been past due
or impaired unless they had been renegotiated no longer needing to be disclosed.

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective in 2011 but not relevant

The following new standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations to published standards are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 or subsequent periods, but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:

34

Standard or Effective for annual
periods beginning
Interpretation Title on or after
IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 1 July 2010/
Standards 1 January 2011
IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2010
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2010
IAS 32 Financial Instruments — Presentation 1 February 2010
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 January 2011
IFRIC 14 The Limit on Defined Benefit Assets, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction 1 January 2011
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments | 1 July 2010

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Standards applicable (continued)
b) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective in 2011 but not relevant (continued)
Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective in 2011

The following IFRS and IFRIC interpretations issued/revised as at 1 January 2011 or subsequent periods have not been early
adopted by the Group’s management:

Standard or Effective for annual
periods beginning

Interpretation Title on or after
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2012
IAS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2012
IAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting

Standards 1 July 2011
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures 1 July 2011
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement 1 January 2013
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Agreements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

There would have been no change in the operational results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 had the
Group early adopted any of the above standards applicable to the Group.

c) Early adoption of amendments or standards in 2011

The Group did not early-adopt new or amended standards in 2011.

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty

Preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Group’s management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The
determination of estimates requires judgments which are based on historical experience, current and expected economic
conditions, and all other available information. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions relate to:

economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment;
classification of investments;

fair valuation of investments;

special purpose entities;

impairment of investments;

valuation of investment properties;
power to exercise significant influence;
legal proceedings;

going concern;

provisions; and

contingencies.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives. Useful lives
are based on management’s estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Changes to estimates can result in significant variations in the carrying value and amounts charged
to the consolidated statement of income in specific periods.

Classification of investments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on acquisition of an investment whether
it should be classified as investments designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale
investment securities. The classification of each investment reflects the management’s intention in relation to each investment
and is subject to different accounting treatments based on such classification.

Fair valuation of investments

The Group determines fair values of investments that are not quoted in active markets by using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flows and recent transaction prices. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market
conditions and information about the investee companies. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. There is no certainty about future
events (such as continued operating profits and financial strengths). It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next financial year are different from assumptions that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investments. In case where discounted cash flow models have been used to estimate fair values, the
future cash flows have been estimated by the management based on information from and discussions with representatives
of the management of the investee companies, and based on the latest available audited financial statements and un-audited
management accounts.

Special Purpose Entities

The Group sponsors the formation of Special Purpose Entities (SPE’s) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients to hold
investments. The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to these SPE’s,
which involve the Group making decisions on behalf of such SPE’s. The Group administers and manages these SPE’s on
behalf of its clients, who are by and large third parties and are the economic beneficiaries of the underlying investments. The
Group does not consolidate SPE's that it does not have the power to control and these SPE’s are held on behalf, and for the
beneficial interest, of third parties. In determining whether the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgments are made
about the objectives of the SPE’s activities, its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group’s intention and
ability to make operational decisions for the SPE and whether the Group derives benefits from such decisions.

Impairment of investments

The Group determines that investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment and is assessed for each investment
separately. In case of quoted equity securities, the Group considers a decline of more than 30% in the fair value below cost to
be significant and considers a decline below cost which persists for more than 6 months as prolonged.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of investments (continued)

Where fair values are not readily available and the investments are carried at cost, the recoverable amount of such investment is
tested for impairment. A significant portion of the Group’s available-for-sale investments comprise of investments in long-term
real estate development projects. In making a judgment of impairment, the Group evaluates among other factors, evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the project, impacts of delays in execution, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that the current
assessment of impairment could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the investments within the next
financial year due to significant changes in the assumptions underlying such assessments.

Valuation of investment properties

The Group obtains valuations performed by external independent property valuers in order to determine the fair value
of its investment properties. These valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, anticipated
maintenance costs and the appropriate discount rate. The independent property valuers also make reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The level of activity in the investment property market has been at a low level for the past twelve months, primarily
because of the reduced availability of credit and global market conditions. The lack of comparable market transactions
has resulted in a greater level of professional judgment being relied upon in arriving at valuations. Changes in the underlying
assumptions could have a significant impact on the fair values presented. Further information in relation to the valuation of
investment properties is disclosed in Note 12 to these consolidated financial statements.

Power to exercise significant influence

Where the Group holds over 20% of voting rights (but not over 50%) and the Group does not exercise significant influence,
the investment is treated either as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale investments. More
information is disclosed in Note 10 to these consolidated financial statements. Where the Group holds more than 50%
of the voting rights and exercises only temporary control or joint control, the investment is treated either as investment
in a joint venture or available-for-sale investments. Details are given in Notes 10 and 11 to these consolidated financial
statements.

Legal proceedings

The Group recognises a provision where there is a present obligation from a past event, a transfer of economic benefits
is probable and the amount of costs of the transfer can be estimated reliably. In instances where the criteria are not
met, a contingent liability may be disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Obligations arising in
respect of contingent liabilities that have been disclosed, or those which are not currently recognised or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements could have a material effect on the Group’s financial position. Application of these
accounting principles to legal cases requires the Group’s management to make determinations about various factual and
legal matters beyond its control.

The Group reviews outstanding legal cases following developments in the legal proceedings at each reporting date,
in order to assess the need for provisions and disclosures in its consolidated financial statements. Among the factors
considered in making decisions on provisions are the nature of litigation, claims or assessment, the legal process and
potential level of damages in the jurisdiction in which the litigation, claims or assessment has been brought, the progress
of the case (including the progress after the date of the consolidated financial statements but before those statements are
issued), the opinions or views of legal advisers, experience on similar cases and any decision of the Group’s management
as to how it will respond to the litigation, claim or assessment.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

5 Critical accounting judgment and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Going concern

The management of the Group reviews the financial position on a periodical basis and assesses the requirement of any
additional funding to meet the working capital requirements and estimated funds required to meet the liabilities as and
when they become due. In addition, the shareholders of the Group ensure that they provide adequate financial support to
fund the requirements of the Group to ensure the going concern status of the Group.

Provisions

The Group creates provision for impaired receivables to account for estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers
to make the required payments. At 31 December 2011, in the opinion of the Group’s management, a provision of US$4,400
thousand is required for impaired receivables (2010: US$688 thousand) (Note 9). When evaluating the adequacy of the
provision for impaired receivables, management bases its estimate on current overall economic conditions, ageing of the
receivable balances, historical write-off experience, customer creditworthiness and changes in payment terms. Changes in the
economy, industry or specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the provision for impaired receivables recorded
in these consolidated financial statements.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment
of such contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimates of the outcome of future events.

6 Segmental information

Business segments - primary reporting segment

The Group’s primary segment reporting format is business segments. A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other business
segments. The Group’s primary business segments are:

e |nvestment and related services - This division is involved in investment and other related services. This division con-
tributes a negative (135%) of the Group’s revenue.

e Construction contracts — This division is involved in undertaking construction contracts and contributes 185% of the
Group’s revenue.

e Development and sale of industrial plots — This division is involved in sale and development of industrial plots and
contributes 83% of the Group’s revenue.

e Property and facility management services — This division is involved in facility management of the properties. This
division is the smallest of the Group’s four divisions and contributes 33% of the Group’s revenue.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

6 Segmental information (continued)

Business segments - primary reporting segment (continued)

As at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2011

Development Property
and sale of and facility T
. . Eliminations Total
industrial  management
plots services
Net revenues from
external customers 384 4,739 1,751 567 - 7,441
Unrealised fair value losses from
investment properties (4,876) - - - - (4,876)
Inter-segment transactions - - 1,520 107 (1,627) -
Income from investments 910 269 159 6 - 1,344
Net share of losses from
investment in a joint venture/
associates (Note 11) (338) - (1,218) - - (1,556)
Other income 238 14 53 65 - 370
Total revenues (3,682) 5,022 2,265 745 (1,627) 2,723
Segment profit/(loss) (22,122) 2,993 (2,647) 8 (1,520) (23,288)
Reportable segment assets 302,318 27,507 72,316 1,937 (92,801) 311,277
Reportable segment liabilities 70,825 6,210 62,380 1,046 (9,875) 130,586
Other segment information
Depreciation (Note 14) 771 695 88 56 - 1,610
Investment in a joint
venture/associates (Note 11) 81,989 - 9,010 - - 90,999
As at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2010
Development Property
nvestment Construction and sale of and facility R
and related X : Eliminations Total
. contracts industrial  management
services }
plots services
Net revenues from
external customers 3,895 4,896 1,987 464 - 11,242
Unrealised fair value losses from
investment properties (25,030) - - - - (25,030)
Inter-segment transactions - - - 230 (230) -
Income from investments (143) 159 174 21 - 211
Net share of profits/(losses) from
investment in a joint venture/
associates (Note 11) (117) - 94 - - (23)
Other income 336 12 217 - - 565
Total revenues (21,059) 5,067 2,472 715 (230) (13,035)
Segment profit/(loss) (38,562) 3,454 241 (11) - (34,878)
Reportable segment assets 358,157 27,226 86,349 977 (103,328) 369,381
Reportable segment liabilities 93,734 8,922 67,573 94 (5,982) 164,341
Other segment information
(Depreciation (Note 14 968 815 117 48 - 1,948
Investment in a joint
(venture/associates (Note 11 86,186 - 10,228 - - 96,414

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

6 Segmental information (continued)

Geographical segments — secondary reporting segment

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to
risks and return that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

The Group’s activities are restricted to investing in real estate projects and in private equity and property funds in the GCC and the
USA.

The following is a geographical distribution of the Group’s investments:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

GCC USA GCC USA

Investment properties 97,716 - 120,145 -
Available-for-sale investments 28,845 - 34,542 700

7 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits 4,145 6,252
Current account balances with banks 6,986 11,024
Cash on hand 8 7
11,139 17,283

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits represent amounts placed with financial institutions, which have original maturity
periods of less than 90 days, and earn market rates of profit. The profits from Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits are recognised
over the period of the related contracts.

The current account balances with banks are non-profit bearing.

8 Mudaraba and Murabaha investments

Mudaraba and Murabaha investments represent amounts placed with financial institutions, which have maturity periods ranging
between 91 to 360 days, and earn market rates of profit per annum receivable on maturity. The profits from Mudaraba and
Murabaha investments are recognised over the period of the related contracts.

9 Trade and other receivables

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Trade receivables 31,797 37,663
Amounts due from related parties (Note 26) 36,919 35,251
Prepayments and other receivables 2,573 4,629
Rents receivable 484 706
Advances to contractors and suppliers 4 27
71,777 78,276

Provision for impaired receivables (4,400) (688)
67,377 77,588

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

9 Trade and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade and other receivables is as follows:

Total Less than More than
6 months 6 months
At 31 December 2011 67,377 12,061 55,316

_At 31 December20to0 .~~~ 000000077588 0O 25972 0@ 51616

Unimpaired trade receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. In the opinion of the Group’s
management, the fair values of the trade and other receivables are not expected to be significantly different from their carrying
values.

The trade receivables stated at a carrying amount of US$15.125 million (2010: US$15.125 million) are secured as guarantee
against the ljara and Murabaha financing facilities obtained (Note 16).

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, bear no profit and have no fixed repayment terms.
The Group’s trade receivables are primarily denominated in Bahrain Dinar.

The movement in the Group’s provision for impaired receivable is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December December 31

2011 2010

Opening balance 688 780
Provision for the year 3,740 6
Written-off during the year (28) (98)
Closing balance 4,400 688

Amounts charged to the provision account are generally written-off when there is no expectation of recovering the related
receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

10 Available-for-sale investments

December 31 December 31

2011 2010

Opening balance (before impairment provision) 36,702 33,519

Purchases during the year 3,598 7,373
Transferred to investment in a joint venture/

associates (Note 11) - (8,161)

Disposals during the year (7,971) (1,029)

32,329 36,702

Impairment provision (8,484) (1,460)

Closing balance 28,845 35,242

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

10 Available-for-sale investments (continued)

Available-for-sale investments include investments in unlisted companies whose shares are not traded on active markets. The
investments are primarily in closely-held companies located in the Gulf Co-operation Council countries (GCC).
management’s opinion, the fair values of these investments are not significantly different from their carrying values as at

31 December 2011.

The available-for-sale investments stated at a carrying amount of US$5.305 million (2010: US$8.289 miillion) are secured as guarantee
against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 16).

The movement in impairment provision on available-for-sale investments is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December December 31

2011 2010

Opening balance 1,460 1,100
Charge for the year 2,024 360
Closing balance 3,484 1,460

11 Investment in a joint venture/associates

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Opening balance 96,414 99,907
Transferred from available-for-sale investments (Note 10) - 3,161
Dividends received during the year - (3,979)
Additions during the year 2,000 -
Disposals during the year (5,859) (2,652)
Share of losses from investment in a joint venture/
associates (1.556) 23)
Closing balance 90,999 96,414

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

11 Investment in a joint venture/associates (continued)

Details of the Group’s investment in associates are as follows:

Description Percentage of
Name of the Country of of shares Principal ownership interest
associate incorporation held activities 2011
2010
Property management,
' Ordinary shares development and
Tala Property Development ngdom of of BD1,000 maintenance and 60.00% 60.00%
WLL Bahrain
each purchase and sale of
properties
Durrat Marina Investment Ordinary Investment, financial,
Company Ltd Cayman Islands shares of | commercial, mercantile 25.78% 25.78%
pany BD1 each and trading activities
Ordinary Property buying,
BIW Labour Kingdom of shares of selling, management 5 5
Accommodation WLL Bahrain BD 100 and development of 27.08% 27.08%
each private properties
) : Investment, financial,
Madaen Al Luzi Company Cayman Islands Ordinary shares commercial, mercantile 29.28% 28.66%
Ltd. of US$10 each : o
and trading activities
. Investment, financial,
Dannat Resort Development Cayman Islands Ordinary shares commercial, mercantile 30.39% 30.39%
Company Ltd. of SR1 each . o
and trading activities
Operating and
. ) : management of
Takhzeen Warehousing and ngdom of Ordinary shares general warshouses 34.33% 33.50%
Storage Company BSC (c) Bahrain of BD 100 each X
and import and export
of general trade items

Although the Group has a 60% shareholding in Tala Property Development Company WLL, the investment has been considered
as an investment in a joint venture rather than as a subsidiary, primarily because the Group exercises joint control. Accordingly, the
results of operations and assets and liabilities have not been consolidated and the interest in this joint venture has been recognised
using the equity method of accounting.

One the subsidiaries of the Group, Al Khaleej Development Co. BSC (c)’s direct shareholding in BIW Labour Accommodation
WLL amounted to 6.26%. However, one of the subsidiaries of Al Khalegj Development BSC(c), Bahrain Investment Wharf BSC
(c), holds 20.82% shares in BIW Labour Accommodation WLL. Therefore, the effective ownership interest of the Group in BIW
Labour Accommodation WLL as at 31 December 2011 amounted to 27.08%. Accordingly, the Group’s investment in BIW Labour
Accommodation WLL has been treated as an associate in these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group invested an additional amount of US$200 thousand in Madaen Al Luzi
Company Ltd. amounting to increase its ownership interest to 29.28%.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group invested an additional amount of US$1.8 million in Takhzeen Warehousing and
Storage Company BSC (c) to increase its ownership interest to 34.33%.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

11 Investment in a joint venture/associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in a joint venture/associates as extracted from the audited
financial statements prepared as at, and for the year ended, 31 December is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Total assets 359,922 376,642
Total liabilities (48,606) (49,883)
Net assets 311,316 326,759
Group’s share in the net assets 90,999 96,414
Operating (loss)/profit for the year (4,526) 293
Net loss for the year (7,392) (2,471)
Group’s share in the net losses (1,556) (23)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has not received any dividends from the investment in a joint
venture/associates (2010: US$3.979 million).

The investment in a joint venture/associates stated at a carrying amount of US$7.853 million (2010: 10.999 million) are
secured as guarantee against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 16).

12 Investment properties

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Opening balance 120,145 139,998
Transferred from Properties-under-development (Note 13) 7,576 -
Purchases during the year = 13,989
Disposals during the year (25,129) (8,812)
Unrealised fair value losses on investment properties (4,876) (25,030)
Closing balance 97,716 120,145

Investment properties are stated at their fair values that have been determined based on valuations performed by
independent property valuers. The valuations undertaken were based on open market values, which represent the prices
at which the properties could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing buyers and knowledgeable willing sellers in an
arm’s length transaction.

The investment properties stated at a carrying amount of US$58.457 million (2010: US$55.815 million) are secured as
guarantee against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (Note 16).

13 Properties-under-development

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Opening balance 6,534 3,417
Costs incurred during the year 1,042 3,117
Transferred to investment properties (Note 12) (7.576) -
Closing balance - 6,534

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

14 Property, plant and equipment

Building Machinery

on equipment Computer Motor Capital
quipment, hardware : work-in- Total
leasehold furniture vehicles
) and software progress
land and fixtures

Cost
At 31 December 2009 - 4,386 1,470 894 - 6,750
Additions 4,284 765 106 346 - 5,501
Disposals - (454) (439) (203) - (1,096)
At 31 December 2010 4,284 4,697 1,137 1,037 - 11,155
Additions - 51 65 74 109 299
Disposals - (46) 4) - - (50)
Impairment loss for the year - (491) (35) - - (526)
At 31 December 2011 4,284 4,211 1,163 1,111 109 10,878
Accumulated
depreciation
At 31 December 2009 - 1,023 554 454 - 2,031
Charge for the year 39 1,215 375 319 - 1,948
Disposals - (397) (287) (145) - (829)
At 31 December 2010 39 1,841 642 628 - 3,150
Charge for the year 173 903 301 233 - 1,610
Disposals - (37) 4) - - (41)
At 31 December 2011 212 2,707 939 861 - 4,719
Net book amount
At 31 December 2011 4,072 1,504 224 250 109 6,159
At 31 December 2010 4,245 2,856 495 409 - 8,005

The Group operates from premises leased at an average monthly rent of US$116 thousand (2010: US$133 thousand per
month).

The depreciation charge for the year is allocated as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Depreciation charged to contract costs (Note 22) 446 497
Depreciation charged to expenses 1,164 1,451
1,610 1,948

During 2011, the Group’s management performed an impairment test of its property, plant and equipment and confirmed
that property, plant and equipment stated at a net book value of USD526 (‘000) has been impaired. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of USD526 (‘000) has been recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

During 2011, the Group’s management re-evaluated the useful life of building and concluded that this should be
decreased from 46 to 25 years. This change in accounting estimate resulted in increase in the depreciation charge of
USD11,332 per annum and will continue to have this impact until 2035.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

15 Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Trade payables 56,867 62,652
Amounts due to related parties (Note 26) 5,208 11,087
Accruals and other payables 17,067 15,282
Retentions payable 1,385 1,327
Advances received 6 1,999
80,533 92,347

Less: current portion of trade and other payables (80,428) (42,242)
Long-term payables 50,105 50,105

Trade payables are generally payable within 60 to 90 days of the suppliers’ invoice date.
The long-term payables represent lease rent payable relating to one of the subsidiaries of the Company.

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, bear no profit and have no fixed repayment terms.

16 ljara and Murabaha financing

31 December December 31
2011 2010

Non-current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing
Murabaha payables 17,547 41,780

Current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing

liara payable 3,274 8,943
Murabaha payables 29,232 21,271
32,506 30,214
Total ljara and Murabaha financing 50,053 71,994

The Group has obtained ljara and Murabaha financing to fund the acquisition of investments, purchase of properties and to
meet the working capital requirements. These liabilities bear market rates of profit and are repayable in accordance with the
repayment terms agreed with respective banker.

The above financial facilities are secured against the following assets and bear profit at market rates.

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Trade receivables (Note 9) 15,125 15,125
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) 5,305 8,289
Investment in a joint venture/associates (Note 11) 7,853 10,999
Investment properties (Note 12) 58,457 55,815
Properties-under-development (Note 13) - 6,534
86,740 96,762

That portion of the amounts which is repayable within one year from the statement of financial position date is disclosed as
current portion of ljara and Murabaha financing.

The amounts stated above equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not considered significant by management.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

17 Share capital

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Authorised
375,000,000 (2010: 375,000,000) shares of US$0.40 each
(2010: US$0.40 each) 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid-up
At 1 January
286,511,225 (2010: 267,767,500)
ordinary shares of US$0.40 each (2010: US$0.40 each) 114,604 107,107
Bonus issue
Nil (2010 : 18,743,725)
ordinary shares of US$Nil each (2010: US$0.40 each) - 7,497
114,604 114,604
Treasury shares
Less: 1,627,825 treasury shares (2010: 1,627,825)
treasury shares of US$NIl each (2010: US$0.40 each) 651) (651)
At 31 December
284,883,400 (2010 : 284,883,400)
ordinary shares of US$0.40 each (2010: US$0.40 each) 113,953 113,953

Treasury shares represent shares issued to Tameer for Private Management WLL, a subsidiary of the Company.

Additional information on shareholding pattern

i) The names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares held in which they have an

interest of 5% or more outstanding shares, without considering the treasury shares, are as follows:

Percentage of

. . Number .

Name of the shareholder Nationality of shares shareholdmg
interest

Al-Muthana Investment Co Kuwaiti 71,169,677 24.84%
Dubai Islamic Bank Emirati 19,748,883 6.89%
Kuwait Finance House Kuwaiti 15,821,695 5.52%
Others Various 179,770,970 62.75%
286,511,225 100%

i) The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of the shares have equal voting rights.

Further, all the shares issued are fully paid.

i) The distribution pattern of equity shares, setting out the number of shareholders and percentages in the

following categories is as follows:

Percentage

Number Number of total

of shareholders of shares outstanding

shares

Less than 1% 828 87,898,264 30.68%
1% up to less than 5% 14 91,872,706 32.07%
5% up to less than 10% 2 35,670,578 12.42%
20% up to less than 50% 1 71,169,677 24.83%
845 286,511,225 100.00%

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

17 Share capital (continued)

i) The Board of Directors collectively hold 0.76% shares of the total issued and fully paid-up share capital of

the Company (2010: 0.79%).

Details of shares owned by the Directors of the Company are as follows:

Number of shares

2011 2010

Fareed Soud Al-Fozan 962,650 962,650
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi 474,723 474,723
Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh 230,238 230,238
Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan 200,511 200,511
Talal Khalid Al-Nesef 94,160 94,160
Adel Yagoob Al-Nafisi 8,275 88,275
Faisal Abdulla Al-Khazam 78,050 78,050
Saleh Turki Al-Khamees 78,050 78,050
Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhro 49,530 49,530
2,176,187 2,256,187

i) Contribution to charity

Transferred to charity fund

No contribution to charity fund relating to the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: US$NIl) was approved by

the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 29 March 2011 (2009: 9 March 2010).
Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Group do not propose any charity contributions for the year ended
31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: US$NIil).

i) Directors’ remuneration

No Directors’ remuneration was appropriated from the retained earnings in the year ended 31 December 2011,

relating to the year ended 31 December 2010 (2010: US$261 thousand for the year ended
31 December 2009).

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company do not propose any Directors’ remuneration for the year ended

31 December 2011 (2010: USS$NIl).

i) Dividends

No cash dividend paid by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: US$Nil)
and no stock dividend (2009: 7%), i.e. no bonus shares issue (2009: 18.744 million shares) was approved by

the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 29 March 2011 (2009: 9 March 2010).

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors do not propose to pay any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:

USS$Ni).

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

18 Reserves

a) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree number 21 of 2001, an amount
equivalent to 10% of the Group’s net profit before appropriations is required to be transferred to a non-distributable reserve
account until such time as a minimum of 50% of the issued share capital is set aside. As the Group has reported a net loss

during the year ended 31 December 2011, no transfer has been made to the statutory reserve (2010: US$NIil).

b) Share option reserve

This represents the difference between the grant price and fair value of the Company’s share options issued to the Group’s
employees in accordance with the Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP”) Scheme (Note 24). This reserve will be utilised

when the shares are issued to the employees.

During the year, the Group did not issue any shares to its employees under the ESOP Scheme (2010: 2,199,995 shares).
Accordingly, the share option reserve totalling to US$Nil million (2010: US$0.463 million) has been transferred from the

share option reserve to the share premium account.

19 Loss from properties

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Realised gains on sale of investment properties 241 1,772
Unrealised fair value losses on investment properties (Note 12) (4,876) (25,030)
Rental income 402 1,893
Property related facilities income 920 573
(3,313) (20,792)
20 Income from investments
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Realised losses on sale of available-for-sale investments (200) (29)
Realised gains on sale of

investment in a joint venture/associate = 13
Murabaha profits 604 432

Realised fair value losses on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss = (233)
Dividend income 940 28
1,344 211

21 Income from advisory services

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the income from advisory fees includes fees earned by the Group with respect to the
development of a plot of land. Further, the advisory fees also include placement, project management, investment banking and

agency fees.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

22 Net income from construction contracts

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Contract income 14,626 18,071
Contract costs (9,887) (13,175)
4,739 4,896

The contract costs include depreciation amounting to US$446 thousand (2010: US$497 thousand) (Note 14).

23 Income from sale of lease/project rights

The Group has not generated any revenue from the sale of lease/project rights during the year ended 31 December 2011 (31
December 2010: USD744 thousand).

24 Staff costs

Staff costs include expenses of US$172 thousand relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: US$854 thousand).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s management reviewed the vesting condition requirements of the
Group’s ESOP and revised the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on the best probability estimates
of the Group’s employees meeting the service and non-market based performance condition requirements of the ESOP
Scheme. These revisions in the probability estimates has resulted in a reversal of an amount of US$1.226 million towards
the ESOP Scheme charge which was expensed in the consolidated statement of income during the previous years.
Further, a reversal of US$0.007 million was recognised in the ESOP scheme charge due to the forfeiture of share awards
on non-satisfaction of service conditions.

25 Loss per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Net loss attributable to the shareholders (23,288) (34,878)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 284,883,400 284,660,539
Basic and diluted loss per share (8.17) cents (12.25) cents

No bonus shares have been issued during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 18.744 million shares), therefore, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in the year 2011 are the same as the ordinary shares issued where as in the
year 2010 the weighted average number of ordinary shares have been restated to give effect to the bonus issue.

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares, hence the diluted loss per share and basic loss per
share are identical.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 Related party transactions and balances

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties include entities over which the Group exercises
significant influence, major shareholders, directors and executive management of the Group. The Group’s transactions
with related parties are authorised by the management.

The following are the transactions entered into with the related parties during the years ended 31 December 2011 and

2010:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Income
Income from properties - 375
Income from investments = 29
Income from advisory services 699 824
Net income from construction contracts 4,088 3,342
Income from sale of lease/project rights - 744
Other income 116 339
Share of loss from investment in
a joint venture/associates (1,556) (23)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Expenses
General and administrative expenses 257 499

A summary of the related party balances as at 31 December is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) 8,236 12,897
Investment in a joint venture/associates (Note 11) 90,999 96,414
Trade and other receivables (Note 9) 36,919 35,251
Murabaha receivables and current accounts (Note 8) 4 5
Trade and other payables (Note 15) 5,208 11,087

27 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Group’s contingent liabilities and capital commitments are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Contingent liabilities 6,891 8,491
Capital commitments - 2,008
6,891 10,499
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities arise in the ordinary course of business and include acceptances and guarantees provided on behalf of
related parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has created a provision amounting to US$3.382 million (2010:
USS$Nil million) against the guarantee provided to the bankers of a related party.

Capital commitments

The Group’s capital commitments represent amounts contracted for at the consolidated statement of financial position date
in respect of investment properties and underwriting commitments.

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Not later than 1 year 978 1,430
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 382 1,304
Later than 5 years 50,105 50,105
51,465 52,839

28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Financial assets and liabilities carried in the consolidated statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents,
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments, available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
investment in a joint venture/associates, trade and other receivables, ljara and Murabaha financing and trade and other
payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each
item.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support
its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes
within net debt, ljara and Murabaha financing and trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes
share capital and reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

liara and Murabaha financing 50,053 71,994
Trade and other payables 80,533 92,347
Less: cash and cash equivalents (11,139) (17,283)
Net debt 119,447 147,058
Share capital 113,953 113,953
Share premium 30,760 30,760
Statutory reserve 21,473 21,473
Share option reserve 474 1,535
Retained earnings 14,031 37,319
Total capital and reserves 180,691 205,040
Total capital and net debt 300,138 352,098
Gearing ratio 39.8% 41.77%

Risk management

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) has the overall responsibility for establishing the Group’s risk management culture and
ensuring that an effective framework is in place. The Board with the support of both the Audit Committee and Executive
Committee approves and periodically reviews risk management policies and strategies of the Group.

The principal risks facing the Group are investment, liquidity, operational, legal, reputation and regulatory risks as set out in
more details below.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Investment risk is defined as the uncertainty about the future benefits to be realised from an investment. The Group has well-
defined policies for managing investment risk. These policies cover investment authority limits and investment assessment
practices. The Investment Department, the Risk Department and the Finance Department study the impact of transactions
on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and monitors the investment portfolio on a continuous basis.
Every investment application is reviewed by a designated body depending on the size and the nature of the transaction. Fair
valuation is generally conducted on a quarterly basis. The Group has a policy to ensure the conservatism convention and to
make the necessary provisions when they are warranted.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that funds will not be available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Risk and Finance
Department has the overall responsibility for managing the funds and the liquidity of the Group. The day-to-day management
of liquidity is the responsibility of the Risk and Finance Department along with Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer.
The Board provides broad guidelines as regards minimum liquid assets that need to be maintained and uses the assets
maturity profile for managing the liquidity risk.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual
cash-flows) of financial liabilities:

Between Between
At 31 December 2011 Upto3 3and 12 1and 2 More than
Total months months years 2 years
liara and Murabaha financing 50,053 - 32,506 10,916 6,631
Trade and other payables 80,533 6,274 24,154 - 50,105
Total 130,586 6,274 56,660 10,916 56,736
Between Between
At 31 December 2010 Upto3 andi123 and 2 1 More than
Total months months years years 2
liara and Murabaha financing 71,994 5,000 25,214 26,734 15,046
Trade and other payables 92,347 15,346 26,896 - 50,105
Total 164,341 20,346 52,110 26,734 65,151

Operational risk is the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or external
events. The Group seeks to minimise this risk through a framework of policies and procedures to identify, control and manage
these risks.

Regulatory risk is the risk of non-compliance with regulatory and legal requirements in the Kingdom of Bahrain and the State of
Kuwait. The Group’s Compliance Department is currently responsible for ensuring all regulations are adhered to.

Legal risk includes the risk of unexpected losses from transactions and/or contracts not being enforceable under applicable
laws or from unsound documentation. The Group deals with several external law firms to support it in managing the legal risk.

Reputation risk is the risk that negative perception regarding the Group’s business practices or internal controls, whether true
or not, will cause a decline in the Group’s investor base and lead to costly litigations which could have an adverse impact on
the liquidity of the Group. The Board represented by the Board Executive Committee examines the issues that are considered
to have reputation repercussions for the Group and issues directives to address these.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011



Q.o.ul Wadgil
0 joouga Pl gd damitioll diud) 6aag0ll dloll wlildl Jga alalayll
(as45001 wiylgall WL diguo &lolD)

&L - phlagll 6)lalg Adlodl Glglhollg Wlagagodl (FA

ol e wlaladll (o ajo oo Wwinall od 28lg aylledl wlagagoll leiy losd Gleidll alie) wlaysill dye4 (e aladl (uuy olial Jgaall
bangoll o)l wlilidloim (po 9 alav] (518 Gaiud redg Uaeais ol sullg woyalg digaoll ayylaill

Ml oy Pl 0l oy Pl
S dll Al o1l a8l Al doudll
Yty &yyi8all Yty JSCRY]

ayllol Wlagagoll
IV,F AP IV,F AP I11#a [N dya6ill ayuing ayadill
AV. AV, 9,.er q,.€r dayljollg dyylaoll wiljlodiuwl
VV,0AA VV,0AA V,PVY IV VY Gralg diyaoll dylail oo il

Il gdlodl juy8il wipo. b i 9g.i]



55

Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Credit rate risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss. Cash is placed with national and international banks with good credit ratings. Management believes
that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Group’s trade receivables.

Quantitative disclosures of the credit risk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out below. Further disclosures
regarding trade and other receivables, which are neither past due nor impaired, are provided in Note 9 to these consolidated
financial statements.

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure value exposure

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,139 11,139 17,283 17,283
Mudaraba and Murabaha investments 9,042 9,042 8,170 8,170
Trade and other receivables 67,377 67,377 77,588 77,588

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2011



.
o
.yl Wl gl

Ml prowgs Pl @8 &amiioll @) 8angoell dloll wlildl Jga wilalayll
(iaaap0ll wl¥gall @I &ino &loll)

&L - phlagll §)la)g dullodl Gliglhollg Wlagagoll (FA

dcgonoll ol juiei U 6)lall 18 el sl 18899 g0l Yol gboll suiyyail jliyall i diall allosll degonoll cilloleo o) dpiall illosl) Wpnll youw o8 wldsil) dayii dllell wlgalldosd ;u2i jhlio o willesll palio
llo2ll jlewl i o dpmga Jhlhs) dnyso

(a0l wljlg I GIT) &l wllesll dogéo dcgonold dyledl wibglinollg dlladl Wlagagoll M-l.g Ml jauuya Pl G9 la

Egon0ll  Egonoll &3l Loll o)l gl jligall gzl Juy! Gl Al whpoll gl allollwlagagoll
r. r r. r.l r. ] r.. r.il r. rl r.. r.l
VV,0AA VvV - - - - - Ir VVENI TJloo Y 1. Gualgiiyaodylaipos
IV,M AP I o 3 vV vV - - lo,Aol Il,..€ IPo. of aya6illauigéyrdill
AJV. q.€r - - - - - - AV q.€r - - daylpollg dyyla ol vllo il
Porer rAAEO - - Lol lLolr lo,0r A 1P var IEPrr ] P AA. PIA. &ule38g o)l wlyloiimbl
Gla il 7 a4 pindice]! &yline]l (98 wl) Lol
aEle 9.999 - - - - ralo (AR oAV ol €N Py IoVV ) ’ P9
ol
FPENAV  LVES o € lL,oAQ l,oAQ pagep BV, 0A. IVE,ONE lo.,r.A 19,V I\ €9 onoll
Ego0n0ll Egon0ll Gihloll oy al GaugAl Lol Gag=udl Judl Gyl jlioall @Du.cbw:cwv.: Adlo)labglinoll
rl. .l r r r ri rh ri r r r r
v1,99¢ 0..0P - - - - - - 11,99¢ €00l (e 0,.. dulugoilanliollgsylall
ar ey A.oPp - - - - LI, - 9.0.. vapp VIV LT Gpalg disls dylaions

NE el IP.0A0 - - - - . - lor £9€ IrePM 1LVIV e €9—onoll

ool joyidl wpo. iy ciandgl]



Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Currency rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s foreign currency transactions are predominantly in Bahrain Dinars
and other GCC currencies which are effectively pegged to the United States Dollars. Accordingly, the management does not consider the Group to have a significant currency rate risk.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities were denominated in the following currencies (US$000’s equivalent):

Financial assets

United States . . - United
Dollars Bahrain Dinars Saudi Riyals Kuwait Dinar Arab Emirates Dirhams Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Trade and other receivables 1,210 107 66,155 77,481 12 - - - - - 67,377 77,588
Cash and cash equivalents 54 1,350 11,004 15,851 - - 77 77 4 5 11,139 17,283
Mudaraba and Murabaha
investments - - 9,042 8,170 - - - - - - 9,042 8,170
Available-for-sale investments 3,180 3,880 10,361 14,322 13,792 15,528 1,512 1,512 - - 28,845 35,242
Investment in a joint venture/
associates 13,577 13,739 53,646 58,760 23,776 23,915 - - - - 90,999 96,414
Total 18,021 19,076 150,208 174,584 37,580 39,443 1,589 1,589 4 5 207,402 234,697
Financial liabilities
United States - o . United
Dollars Bahrain Dinars Saudi Riyals Kuwait Dinar Arab Emirates Dirhams Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
liara and Murabaha financing 5,000 10,000 45,053 61,994 - - - - - - 50,053 71,994
Trade and other payables 1,220 717 79,313 90,500 - 1,130 - - - - 80,533 92,347
Total 6,220 10,717 124,366 152,494 - 1,130 - - - - 130,586 164,341
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Inovest BSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market rates. The
Group’s assets and liabilities are not considered by management to be sensitive to profit rate risk.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm'’s length transaction.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying amounts.
Off-statement of financial position items
Assets Under Collective Management (AUM)

The details of assets managed/held on behalf of the clients as at 31 December is as follows:

Particulars Held under Discretionary/ 31 December 31 December
the name non-discretionary 2011 2010
Projects managed by the Individual
Company Shareholders Non-discretionary 25,318 24,919
Projects managed by Individual
subsidiaries of the Company Shareholders Non-discretionary 276,257 306,163

29 Zakah

The shareholders of the Company will be liable for the payment of Zakah.
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